GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

MEETING TO BE HELD AT 2.00 PM ON 29 JULY 2014
WELLINGTON HOUSE, WELLINGTON STREET, LEEDS

AGENDA

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are reminded of their responsibility, in accordance with the Members’
Code of Conduct, to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in any matter under
consideration at this meeting. Should you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in an
item on the agenda you should not participate in any discussion on the matter, vote
on the matter or remain in the meeting during discussion and voting on the matter
subject to Part 4 (paragraphs 19 and 20) of the Code of Conduct.

If a member is unsure of the correct course of action to take, they should seek advice
from the Secretary and Solicitor prior to the meeting.

Members should complete the appropriate form, attached herewith, and hand it to

the Secretary and Solicitor before leaving the meeting. A blank form can be obtained
from the Secretary and Solicitor at the meeting.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press and public.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 30 APRIL 2014
(pages 8 - 12)

Copy attached.



10.

11.

12.

EXTERNAL AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS
(pages 13 - 17)

To consider the attached report.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
(pages 18 - 22)

To consider the attached report.

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME 2014
(pages 23 - 27)

To consider the attached report.

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT AND OPINION
(pages 28 - 47)

To consider the attached report.

REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL

AUDIT
(pages 48 - 49)

To consider the attached report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND FINANCIAL MONITORING
(pages 50 - 53)

To consider the attached report.

APPROVAL OF ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2013/14
(pages 54 — 217)

To consider the attached report.

Signed:

Head of Paid Service WYCA




Originator: Nick Winney
Monitoring Officer

ITEM1
Report to: Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 29 July 2014
Subject: Appointment of Chair
1. Purpose

1.1. To appoint the Chair of the Governance and Audit Committee.

2. Information

2.1. The Procedure Standing Orders of the West Yorkshire Combined Authority provide that
committees of the Authority may appoint their own chair if there is a vacancy in the
post or if the Authority does not make an appointment.

2.2. Following the local elections in May the WYCA appointed members to its committees at
its meeting on 26 June. It did not appoint a Chair of the Governance and Audit
Committee at that meeting.

3. Financial Implications

3.1. The Members’ Allowances Scheme adopted by the WYCA will apply to the post of Chair
of the Governance and Audit Committee.

4. Legal Implications

4.1. The Procedure Standing Orders allow that committees may appoint their own chairs in
the absence of an appointment by the WYCA or a casual vacancy.

5. Staffing Implications
5.1. None as a result of this report.
6. Recommendations

6.1. That a Chair of the Governance and Audit Committee be appointed.



AGENDA ITEM NO: 3

WEST YORKSHIRE COMBINED AUTHORITY

DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

NAME OF MEMBER: ....cciiiiiinniiicinnitnnnnissnesnnsssessnnssessnnsssnnsssssssssessssene

COMMITTEE: GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

DATE: 29 JULY 2014

AGENDA NATURE OF INTEREST
ITEM NO

You should complete this form only if you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any particular item
on this agenda. (See attached appendix for schedule of disclosable pecuniary interests.) Completed
forms should be handed in to the Secretary and Solicitor before leaving the meeting.

NOTE: Should you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in an item on the agenda you should not
participate in any discussion on the matter, vote on the matter or remain in the meeting during

discussion and voting on the matter subject to paragraph 24 of the Code of Conduct.

If you are unsure of the correct course of action to take, you should seek advice from the Secretary
and Solicitor prior to the meeting.

t:/Committee/Transport Committee /Code of Conduct and Declarations of Interest/Declarations of Interest — Agenda Item 2.doc




Appendix

SCHEDULE OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT
2011 AND THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMBINED AUTHORITY 2014

Disclosable Interest

Description

Employment, office, trade, profession or
vocation

Sponsorship

Contracts

Land

Licences

Corporate tenancies
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Any employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

Any payment or provision of any other
financial benefit (other than from the
relevant Authority) made or provided
within the relevant period in respect of
any expenses incurred by a Member in
carrying out duties as a member, or
towards the election expenses of the
Member.

This includes any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Any contract which is made between the
relevant person (or a body in which the
relevant person has a beneficial interest)
and the Authority -

(@) under which goods or services are to
be provided or works are to be
executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Any beneficial interest in land which is
within the area of the Authority.

Any licence (alone or jointly with others)
to occupy land in the area of the
Authority for a month or longer.

Any tenancy where (to the member’s
knowledge) -

(a) the landlord is the Authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the

relevant person has a beneficial
interest.



Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a
body where -

(a) that body (to the Member’s
knowledge) has a place of business
or land in the area of the Authority;
and

(b) either -

(i) the total nominal value of the
securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of
more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any
one class in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest
exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.

If a Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter under discussion, the Member may not:-
(a) participate, or participate further, in any discussion of the matter at the meeting;

(b) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting (unless the
Member has requested and been granted a relevant dispensation by the Standards
Committee), or

(c) remain in the room during the discussion or vote on the matter.

Where Members have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter to be considered at a meeting,
they may attend the meeting but only for the purposes of making representations, answering
guestions or giving evidence relating to the matter, provided that the public are also allowed to
attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. Once
Members have finished, or the meeting decides they have finished, Members must leave the room
and may not remain in the room during the discussion or vote on the matter.

Note: If a close family member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, this is deemed to be a
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest of the Member of the Authority.



AGENDA ITEM NO: 4

PUBLIC INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS AND ACCESS
TO MEETINGS OF THE WEST YORKSHIRE COMBINED AUTHORITY

(a) Files containing correspondence etc, relating to items to be discussed at the meeting
may be inspected by contacting the originating department - please see below.
Certain information may be confidential and not open to inspection.

(b) The attached Agenda Items do not contain any exempt information as defined in
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

Compilation of Agenda by: Ruth Chaplin
Telephone No: Leeds (0113) 251 7217
Date: 21 July 2014

Committee.fil/Public Inspection of Documents



ITEM 5
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
HELD ON WEDNESDAY 30 APRIL 2014 IN WELLINGTON HOUSE, LEEDS

Present: Councillor H Richards (Chair)
Councillors G Burton, G Hussain, R Light, N Mcllveen and L Smith

In attendance: A Lince (Deloitte)

1. Election Of Chair
Councillor H Richards was proposed and seconded for the position of Chair.

Resolved - That Councillor Richards be appointed Chair.

2. Apologies for Absence

An apology for absence was received from Councillor S Baines (Calderdale).

3. Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Councillor Robert Light declared an interest in agenda item number 10, as he was a
member of the Audit Commission.

4, Minutes
Resolved - That the minutes of the meeting of the Integrated Transport Authority’s
Audit & Governance Committee held on 24 January 2014 be approved

5. Forward Plan of Work 2014-2015
The Committee considered a report setting out the programme of work for 2014/15.

Members were advised that apart from the work programme, as detailed in the
report, other items would be brought for members’ consideration as and when



required. Comment was also made that a review of the programme be undertaken
in 6 months, including corporate governance arrangements, as the Combined
Authority evolved.

It was also reported that the Audit Commission was consulting over the proposed
appointment of Deloitte LLP as the Combined Authority’s auditor.

Resolved -

(a) That, subject to a review of the programme being carried out in 6 months,
the programme of work be noted.

(b) That the proposal to appoint Deloitte as the Combined Authority’s auditor be
noted.

Internal Audit Charter 2014

The Committee considered a report on the Internal Audit Charter for the Combined
Authority.

It was reported that the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) required the
purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit activity to be formally defined
in an internal audit charter, consistent with the definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of
Ethics and the Standards.

Members were advised that the document would assist the WYCA in accomplishing its
objectives by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and governance processes.

A copy of the Authority’s Audit Charter was attached at Appendix 1 to the submitted
report.

Resolved - That the Internal Audit Charter for the Combined Authority be endorsed for
approval by the West Yorkshire Combined Authority.

Internal Audit Progress Report

The Committee considered a report on the work undertaken by the Internal Audit Section
and the key issues which had been identified.

It was reported that the following areas of work had been reviewed since the last meeting
and these were detailed in the submitted report with the audit opinion.

e Risk Management Framework
e Gifts, Hospitality and Interests
e Main Accounting System



Prepaid Tickets and Concessionary Travel

Creditors

English National Concessionary Travel Scheme (ENCTS)
Treasury

Payroll

Comment was made that the majority of reviews undertaken were assessed as either
‘well controlled’ or ‘controlled’. Only one audit, ENCTS, had resulted in an assurance level
of ‘required improvement’. That related to improvements to:

e Control to the identification and maintenance of levels of Smartcard ticket stocks held
with third parties.

e System user access rights for the customer database system.

Resolved - That the report be noted.

Internal Audit - Annual Audit Plan 2014/2015

The Committee considered a report on the proposed schedule of Internal Audit
Reviews for 2014/2015.

Members noted the details of the Internal Audit Plan 2014/15, which were outlined
in the appendix to the submitted report. They were advised that the content and
progress, moving forward as a Combined Authority, would be regularly reviewed and
reported and that any changes required to address emerging risks would be
reported to this Committee.

Resolved - That the Annual Audit Plan commencing from April 2014, as detailed in
Appendix A of the submitted report, be recommended for approval by the Combined
Authority.

External Audit Plans

The Committee considered a report on the Audit Plans from the external auditors for
the year ended 2013/2014.

It was reported that the external auditor, Deloitte, was required to produce a plan
each year for their audit work. It was explained that, as the Combined Authority was
only created on 1 April 2014, the relevant accounts for the year ended 31 March
2014 were those of the West Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority and the West
Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive. The External Audit Plans for 2013/2014
were attached at appendix A to the submitted report and set out the audit work and
risks facing the Authority, which impacted on that work.

Resolved - That the External Audit Plans for 2013/2014 be noted.
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10.

Internal controls and Financial Monitoring

The Committee considered a report on any changes to the Authority’s internal
control arrangements since the last meeting and to consider the current financial
position.

Internal Controls

The Committee were advised that whilst there had been changes to the ways of
working as a result of the creation of the Combined Authority from the former
Integrated Transport Authority and the Passenger Transport Executive it had been
possible to keep the integrity of the internal control structure largely intact,
particularly with regard to the key high risk areas such as financial systems. The
governance of decision making had been developed through the mechanism of the
Shadow Combined Authority and would evolve as the Combined Authority
developed, which would be the subject of review by the WYCA and internal audit in
due course.

Financial Monitoring

In noting the current position regarding the Authority’s revenue and capital budgets,
it was reported that the budget for 2014/2015 and the revised budget outturn for
2013/2014 were approved in February by the Integrated Transport Authority and
subsequently reapproved at the first meeting of the Combined Authority. Members
were advised that the WYCA would be undertaking a review of both the revenue and
capital budgets at its meeting in May 2014.

In this respect, comment was made that the capital programme would also be
subject to a further review when the outcome of the LEP’s Strategic Economic Plan
was known, as that would determine the funding available from the Single Local
Growth Fund.

Risk Management

It was reported that the risk management arrangements that were in place for the
WYITA and WYPTE had now been adopted for the Combined Authority. The Risk
Policy and Risk Manual, which set out detailed arrangements for risk management,
were currently being updated to reflect the changes arising as a result of the new
Combined Authority and would be brought to a future meeting of the Committee. In
this respect, the Committee was advised that the Annual Governance Statement,
which accompanied the Annual Accounts, would be brought to the next meeting and
would include a review on governance arrangements including risk. A revised risk
policy statement had been produced for the Combined Authority and was attached
as Appendix 3.

Resolved - That the report be noted.

11



11.

Due Diligence - Transfer to the Combined Authority
The Committee considered a report on the satisfactory outcome of the due diligence
work undertaken to support the transfer of the West Yorkshire Integrated Transport

Authority and the Passenger Transport Executive to the Combined Authority.

Resolved - That the work undertaken as part of the due diligence exercise be noted.

12



Originator: Angela Taylor,
Director, Resources

ITEM 6
Report to: Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 29 July 2014
Subject: External Audit Arrangements
1 Purpose

1.1 To inform the Committee of the appointment of external auditors.
2 Information

2.1 At its last meeting the Committee was informed verbally that a letter had just been
received from the Audit Commission seeking views on the appointment of external
auditors to the West Yorkshire Combined Authority. This was required as WYCA was
a new organisation.

2.2 Representations were made to the Audit Commission supporting the appointment of
Deloitte LLP, the current auditors of the West Yorkshire Integrated Transport
Authority and West Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive. Deloitte completed
their first year end audit of these organisations for the 2012/13 year end and their
experience from this and the 2013/14 year end would be beneficial in auditing the
first set of accounts for the WYCA in 2014/15. This would ensure continuity through
a period of change and maximise the benefits of their work in previous years. The
Audit Commission has subsequently confirmed the appointment of Deloitte for the
audit of WYCA for 2014/15 and the letter confirming this is attached as Appendix A.

2.3 The Audit Commission has recently undertaken a procurement process to appoint
auditors for a number of authorities from 2015/16 onwards. Their contract with
Deloitte expires at this time and Deloitte were not successful in this procurement.
The Audit Commission are therefore required to appoint another auditor to take
over the WYCA audit from 2015/16.

2.4  The Audit Commission has proposed the appointment of Mazars LLP; their letter is
attached as appendix B. The WYCA is able to make representations if there are any
reasons why it feels this appointment is unacceptable, for example there may be
conflicts of interest with other work being undertaken by the proposed appointee.

13



3.1

4.1

51

6.1

The WYCA has no previous history of working with Mazars and there appear to be no
reasons to object to the proposal. As the response date for representations is 25 July
this conclusion has been endorsed by the Head of Paid Service.

Financial Implications

The audit fees charged are set by the Audit Commission. A review of the appropriate
level of fees for the 2014/15 audit of the WYCA is being undertaken by the Audit
Commission and this will include a consultation process. The WYCA has previously
made representations that it would expect a reduction in the level of fees in moving
from the audit of two organisations to only one.

Legal Implications

None arising directly from this report.

Staffing Implications

None arising directly from this report.

Recommendations

That the Committee note the external appointments made by the Audit Commission.

14



&‘ gé'rﬁ?%ission

Our reference JH/KR
Your reference

19 June 2014

Adrian Lythgo Direct line 0303 444 8273
West Yorkshire Combined Authority Email auditor-
Wellington House
40-50 Wellington Street
Leeds

LS1 2DE

appointments@audit-
commission.gsi.gov.uk

Dear Adrian

West Yorkshire Combined Authority - auditor appointment for 2014/15

Further to my letter of 25 April and your response of 29 April, | am now writing to confirm the
appointment of Deloitte LLP to audit the accounts for the West Yorkshire Combined Authority
for 2014/15.

The appointment is made under section 3 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and was confirmed
by the Commission Board at its meeting today, 19 June 2014. The appointment is for one year
only, in respect of the 2014/15 accounts. | will be writing to you shortly to consult on a new
appointment from 2015/16.

| have copied this letter to Deloitte. The firm will be in contact with you to discuss arrangements
for the audit.

If you have any questions about the auditor appointment, please email us at auditor-
appointments@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk.

Yours sincerely

Jon Hayes
Associate Controller of Audit (Compliance)

cc Angela Taylor, West Yorkshire Combined Authority
Deloitte LLP

Audit Commission, 3rd Floor, Fry Building, 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF
T 0303 444 8300 Www.audit—commission.go1v5uk
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23 June 2014

Direct line 0303 444 8273
Adrian Lythgo Email auditor-

Head of Paid Service - :
West Yorkshire Combined Authority app0|r?tm.ents@aud|t
commission.gsi.gov.uk

Wellington House
40-50 Wellington Street
Leeds

LS1 2DE

Dear Adrian

West Yorkshire Combined Authority - consultation on auditor appointment
from 2015/16

| wrote to you recently about your auditor appointment for 2014/15, and informed you that |
would need to consult you separately on the appointment from 2015/16. | am now writing to
consult you on the appointment of Mazars LLP to audit the accounts of West Yorkshire
Combined Authority from 2015/16 for two years. The appointment will start on 1 April 2015.

Mazars in the UK has 127 partners and 1,300 staff working out of 20 offices and a turnover of
£120 million in 2013. It is an integral part of Mazars international with 13,800 staff in 72
countries worldwide and a turnover of over £1 billion. For further information on Mazars LLP
please visit: http://www.mazars.co.uk/

Background to the proposed appointment

The Audit Commission announced in 2013 that it would retender the audit contracts awarded to
audit firms in 2006 and 2007, representing approximately 30 per cent of the local public audit
market. The procurement was completed in April 2014 and the Commission is now making
auditor appointments to bodies previously audited under the old contacts. Our new contracts are
in addition to those let in 2012 covering the remaining 70 per cent of the local public bodies to
which the Commission appoints the auditor. Deloitte was not successful in winning one of our
new contracts so we need to appoint a different firm as your auditor.

Under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the Commission will close
at the end of March 2015. A transitional body will be established from 1 April 2015 to oversee
the Commission’s audit contracts and will have responsibility for the existing statutory functions
relating to auditor appointments.

The transitional body will manage the contracts until their expiry in 2017 (or 2020 if the
Department for Communities and Local Government opts to extend some or all of the

Audit Commission, 3rd Floor, Fry Building, 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF
T 0303 444 8300 www.audit-commission.gov.uk
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contracts). This is the point at which local public bodies will be required to have their own
auditors in place or to have agreed to participate in any collective procurement arrangements
that are established.

The consultation process

The Audit Commission has a statutory duty to appoint external auditors to local public bodies
under Section 3 of the Audit Commission Act 1998. This duty requires the Commission to
consult local government bodies on the auditor appointment. We also consult NHS bodies.

The consultation on the proposed auditor appointment will close on 25 July 2014.
Process for objecting to the proposed auditor appointment

If you wish to make representations to the Commission about the proposed auditor appointment
please send them by email to auditor-appointments@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk by Friday 25
July 2014. Your email should set out the reasons why you think the proposed appointment
should not be made. Such representations can include matters that you believe might be an
impediment to the firm’s independence, were it to be your appointed auditor.

We will consider carefully all representations and will respond by Monday 15 September. If
your representations are accepted, we will consult you on an alternative appointment. If your
representations are not accepted, they will also be considered by a subcommittee of the
Commission Board (the Board’s Appointments Panel).

The Commission Board will consider all proposed appointments at its meeting scheduled for 4
December. We aim to write to all bodies to confirm the Commission’s decision on the
appointment of the auditor by 31 December 2014.

If you have any questions about the proposed auditor appointment or the consultation process
please email us at auditor-appointments@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk or call on 0303 444
8273.

Yours sincerely

Jon Hayes
Associate Controller of Audit (Compliance)

cc Angela Taylor, Director, Resources, West Yorkshire Combined Authority
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Originator: Russell Gott
Internal Audit Manager

ITEM 7
Report to: Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 29 July 2014
Subject: Internal Audit Progress Report
1. Purpose

1.1 To inform the Authority of the work undertaken by the Internal Audit Section.
2. Information

2.1. This report provides details of activities undertaken by the Internal Audit Section in
the period from 1 April 2014 to 30 June 2014 and summarises the objectives of
reviews undertaken, audit opinion and the key issues resulting from this work.

2.2. The Internal Audit Section has undertaken work contained within the West Yorkshire
Combined Authority’s (WYCA’s) Audit Plan 2014/15 through the performance of the
following audit reviews:

° LTP3 Capital Programme Management.
o Expenses.
° NGT Project Risk Management.
° LSSE Project Risk Management.
o Human Resources — VfM Performance Indicators.
° Petty Cash.
. CARE NORTH PLUS — Grant Certification.
3. How Control is Reviewed

3.1 There are three elements to each internal audit review. Firstly, the objectives and
key risks associated with the audit entity are identified. Secondly, controls which
internal audit would expect to be present to mitigate risk are determined and finally
an audit programme is developed to review the existence and operation of those
controls through a combination of substantive and compliance testing.

18



3.2

4.1.

An evaluation of the effectiveness of controls tested is provided within each audit
report along with an indication of any residual risk. This is then used as the basis for
forming an audit opinion of the entity. Details of audit opinion assurance categories
are provided below;

Assurance Level Definition

Well Controlled There is a robust control framework in place for the system.
All necessary controls are in place and are operating effectively.

Any recommendations made are low risk and relate to
enhancements of existing controls.

Controlled There is an acceptable control framework in place.
Key controls are in place and operating effectively.

Some changes to controls and how they operate would be
beneficial.

Recommendations made are moderate or a combination of
moderate and low risk, including the development of existing
controls, and do not relate to key controls.

Requires Improvement Controls in place for some elements of the system are not always
appropriate or effective or are not consistently applied.

Recommendations made are of high or a combination of high and
moderate risk concerning the operation of key controls.

Poorly Controlled There is an inadequate control framework.
Key controls are absent or not operating.

The operation of the system is currently providing an
unacceptable risk.

Recommendations made are high risk concerning the operation
of key controls.

Audit Summary

The reviews undertaken in the period were assessed as either well controlled or
controlled. A summary of the internal audit reviews performed along with details of
any significant issues identified and respective audit opinions are provided below.

4.1.1 LTP Capital Programme Management
“Well Controlled”

This audit examined arrangements established for the approval of payments of
integrated transport block and highways block funding, programme governance,
reporting and arrangements to oversee delivery and manage risks.
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The review included consideration of programme monitoring arrangements and
compliance with grant determination 2013/14/2150.

There were no significant issues identified as a result of the audit testing undertaken.

4.1.2 Expenses
“Controlled”

The review considered the presence and the operation of key controls including
authorisation, budgetary control, compliance with standing orders, financial
regulations, procedures and purchase card security arrangements .

Audit testing highlighted an inconsistency relating to the reimbursement of the cost
of meals for a small group of staff. This is a long established arrangement and within
that team’s terms and conditions of employment. However, it was agreed that
action would be taken to seek to consolidate and standardise working terms in
respect of reimbursement for meal allowances across the organisation.

4.1.3 NGT Project Risk Management
“Well Controlled”

The purpose of this audit was to review project risk management arrangements for
the NGT project and provide feedback to the project board.

The audit predominantly focused on the application of PRINCE2 project risk
management principles and assessed the Project Risk Management Strategy, Project
Risk Log, Project Issues log, Risk Reporting and Project Board Minutes and Actions.

The principal audit comments concerned improvements in defining risk early
warning indicators within the Risk Management Strategy and providing commentary
on these issues in Highlight Reports produced for the Project Board.

4.1.4 LSSE Project Risk Management
“Well Controlled”

The purpose of this audit was to review project risk management arrangements for
the Leeds Station Southern Entrance project and provide feedback in terms of
observations to the project board.

The audit focused on the presence, content and utilisation of the following PRINCE2
documentation:

Project Risk Management Strategy
Project Risk Log
Project Issues log
Risk Reporting
20



Project Board Minutes and Actions

The observations provided concerned the development of the existing project risk
management strategy and clarification of risk management roles within the project.

4.1.5 Human Resources — VfM Indicators
“Controlled”

This review considered primary performance indicators for public sector
organisations in the U.K. and compared them with calculations for the provision of
the H.R. function of WYCA.

It was established that, for the majority of these indicators, the function compared
well against the national averages. However, it was identified that further
examinations are required by management in two areas where costs were in excess
of the average. To address these issues, it was reported that a proposal to update
the H.R. Strategy is planned to be included in a wider development of WYCA’s
governance arrangements.

4.1.6 Petty Cash
“Well Controlled”

Internal Audit performed an unannounced count and reconciliation of petty cash
held at Wellington House. This review went on to assess the arrangements in
operation to ensure the accuracy of records, safekeeping and authorisation of petty
cash transactions.

There were no significant issues resulting from this review.

4.1.7 CARE NORTH PLUS - Grant Certification

An audit of expenditure incurred in respect of Carbon Responsible Transport
Strategies for the North Sea area (CARE NORTH PLUS) activities was performed for
the claim period from 8 April 2013 to 31 May 2014.

The Internal Audit Manager was able to certify that Euro 29,414 was eligible to be
claimed in the period.
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5.1.

6.1

7.1.

8.1

9.1.

Other Activity

In addition to the completion of scheduled audit reviews provided in section 4 of this
report, work is currently in progress relating to Tendered Subsidised Bus Services,
Travel Centre Procedures, New Pudsey Station Car Park Scheme Benefits Realisation
and Realtime Information Systems Source Code Escrow Arrangements. A summary
of the results from these reviews will be provided to this Committee once the final
audit reports are released.

Financial Implications

None relating directly to the Internal Audit function.

Legal Implications

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 establish requirements relating to systems
of internal control and the review and reporting of those systems. Accordingly, the
Authority must have in place a process for establishing, maintaining and reviewing
the system of internal control and risk management. The regular reporting by the
Internal Audit Manager forms part of that review.

Staffing Implications

None relating directly to the Internal Audit function.

Recommendations

That the Internal Audit progress report be noted.
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Originator: Russell Gott
Internal Audit Manager

ITEM 8

Report to: Governance and Audit Committee

Date: 29 July 2014

Subject: Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 2014

1. Purpose

1.1 To consider the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme for Internal Audit.

2. Information

2.1.  Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the formal documenting of a
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP). This covers all aspects of
the Internal Audit activity and enables compliance with all aspects of the PSIAS to be
evaluated. It allows for the assessment of the efficiency and effectiveness of the
Internal Audit activity and identifies opportunities for improvement. This is through
both internal and external assessments. The requirement for an external
assessment of the Internal Audit activity at least once in every 5 years is a new
requirement.

2.2 The results of the QAIP must be reported to senior management and the
Governance and Audit Committee on an annual basis. This may be provided within
internal audit’s annual report and opinion.

2.3 The QAIP for the West Yorkshire Combined Authority is attached as an appendix to
this report.

3. Financial Implications

3.1 None relating directly to the Internal Audit function.

4. Legal Implications

4.1. None relating directly to the Internal Audit function.
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5.1.

6.1.

Staffing Implications
None relating directly to the Internal Audit function.
Recommendations

That the Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 2014 for the
Combined Authority be recommended for approval.
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Introduction

Internal Audit’s Quality Assurance and Improvement Program (QAIP) is designed to
provide reasonable assurance to the various stakeholders of West Yorkshire
Combined Authority that Internal Audit:

e Performs its work in accordance with its Charter, which is consistent with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, Definition of Internal Auditing and
Code of Ethics;

e Operates in an efficient and effective manner;

e |s adding value and continually improving Internal Audit’s operations.

The Chief Audit Executive is ultimately responsible for the QAIP, which covers all
types of Internal Audit activities. The QAIP must include both internal and external
assessments. Internal assessments are both ongoing and periodical and external
assessments must be undertaken at least once every five years.

Internal Assessment

Internal Assessment is made up of both on-going reviews and periodic reviews.
On-going Reviews
On-going assessments are conducted through:

e Supervision of engagements.

e Regular, documented review of work papers during engagements.

e Audit policies and procedures used for each engagement including the
Internal Audit Manual to ensure compliance with applicable planning,
fieldwork and reporting standards.

o Feedback from audit client post audit questionnaires for individual audit
assignments.

e Analyses of key KPI's established to improve Internal Audit’s effectiveness
and efficiency.

e All draft and final reports and recommendations are reviewed and approved
by the Chief Audit Executive.

Periodic Reviews

Periodic assessments are designed to assess conformance with Internal Audit’s
Charter, the Standards, Definition of Internal Audit, the Code of Ethics, and the
efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit in meeting the needs of its various
stakeholders. Periodic assessments will be conducted through:
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¢ Review of internal audit performance Key Performance Indicators by the Chief
Audit Executive on a monthly basis.

e Quarterly activity and performance reporting to the Governance and Audit
Committee and Section 73 responsible finance officer.

e Annual self-review of conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards.

Any resultant action plans will be monitored by the Chief Audit Executive on a
quarterly basis.

External Assessment

External assessments will appraise and express an opinion about Internal Audit
conformance with the Standards, Definition of Internal Audit and Code of Ethics and
include recommendations for improvement as appropriate.

An external assessment will be conducted at least once every 5 years by a qualified,
independent assessor from outside the Authority. The assessment will be in the
form of a full external assessment, or a self-assessment with independent external
validation. The format of the external assessment must be discussed with the
Governance and Audit Committee.

Reporting

Internal Assessments — reports of internal assessments will be reported to the
Governance and Audit Committee on an annual basis;

External Assessments — results of external assessments will be reported to the
Governance and Audit Committee and Section 73 officer at the earliest opportunity
following receipt of the external assessors report. The external assessment report
will be accompanied by a written action plan in response to significant findings and
recommendations contained in the report.

Follow Up — the Chief Audit Executive will implement appropriate follow-up actions to
ensure that recommendations made in the report and action plans developed are
implemented in a reasonable timeframe.
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Originator: Russell Gott
Internal Audit Manager

ITEM9
Report to: Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 29 July 2014
Subject: Annual Internal Audit Report and Opinion
1. Purpose
1.1 To provide the Annual Internal Audit Report and Opinion of the control environment

2.1.

2.2

2.3

2.4

in operation during 2013/14 for West Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority
(WYITA) and West Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive (WYPTE).

Information
Public Sector Internal Audit Standard, PSIAS 2450, requires the Chief Audit Executive

to provide an annual report to the Board timed to support the Annual Governance
Statement. The report must include;

e An annual audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of governance,

risk and control framework, (the control environment).

e A summary of the audit work performed from which the opinion is derived

including any reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies.

e A statement on conformance with PSIAS and the results of the Internal Audit

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme.

In addition, the PSIAS require the Chief Audit Executive to confirm to the Board at
least annually, the organisational independence of internal audit activity.

In the context of PSIAS, ‘opinion” means that internal audit will have done sufficient,
evidenced work to form a supportable conclusion about the activity it has examined.

It should be noted that the opinion for both WYITA and WYPTE is that the framework
of governance, risk management and control had operated adequately. Due to the
mutual reliance on systems and processes in operation, a joint audit plan covering
both WYPTE and WYITA was undertaken in 2013/14 and therefore the annual
internal audit reports for both these organisations are identical. The Annual Internal
Audit report for WYPTE is attached to this paper for information and consideration.
A copy of the report for WYITA will also be available at the meeting for members to
inspect if they wish.
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3.1

4.1.

5.1

6.1.

Financial Implications

None relating directly to the Internal Audit function.

Legal Implications

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 establish requirements relating to systems
of internal control and the review and reporting of those systems. Accordingly, the
West Yorkshire Combined Authority must have in place a process for establishing,
maintaining and reviewing the system of internal control, governance and risk
management.

Staffing Implications

None relating directly to the Internal Audit function.

Recommendation

That the Annual Internal Audit Report and Opinion be considered.
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Internal Audit Annual Report 2013/14

Background

UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the Chief Audit Executive
to deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used by the
organisation to inform its governance statement. The annual internal audit opinion
must conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s
framework of governance, risk management and control. The results of work
undertaken within the Annual Audit Plan are designed to support the opinion
provided in the Annual Internal Audit Report.

Information

Annual Reporting Process

Management are responsible for the system of internal control and should set in
place policies and procedures to help ensure that the system is functioning correctly.
Internal Audit review, appraise and report on the efficiency, effectiveness and
economy of financial and other management controls. This report is the culmination
of the work during the course of the year and seeks to:

e Provide an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
Executive’s framework of governance, risk management and control.

e Provide a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived,
including reliance placed on work by other service providers.

e State the level of conformance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards and comment on the results of the Quality Assurance and
Improvement Program.

Scope and Purpose of Internal Audit

There is a statutory requirement under the Accounts & Audit (England) Regulations
2011 for an internal audit function. Regulation 6 states that a “relevant body must
undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records and of
its system of internal control in accordance with the proper practices in relation to
internal control”. This role is complemented by initiatives aimed at promoting
effective corporate governance with particular emphasis on risk management. It is
recognised that proper internal audit practices as those contained in the UK Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Independence of Internal Audit

Internal audit is an independent and objective assurance and consulting activity that
is guided by a philosophy of adding value to improve the operations of the Executive.
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The work of internal audit forms part of the organisation’s overall assurance
framework providing independent and objective assessment on governance, risk
management and internal control. Throughout 2013/14 the Internal Audit function
has remained organisationally independent. This is supported through the Internal
Audit Charter and risk-based audit plan being approved by the board in April 2013.

How Internal Control is Reviewed

Internal Audit have developed a risk-based approach to delivering the audit function.
References have been made to the Executive’s audit universe risk profile which was
used to form the basis of internal audit’s operational plan.

The review process draws on key indicators of risk to the organisation and attempts
to ensure that suitable audit time and resources are provided for these areas.
Factors used in assessing risk include financial materiality, legislative requirements,
previous audit experience, and the potential for fraud. This risk based approach to
audit planning results in a comprehensive range of audits that are undertaken during
the course of the year to support the overall opinion on the internal control
environment.

Annual Governance Statement (AGS)

The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2011) establish the requirements related to
systems of internal control and the review and reporting of those systems.
Accordingly, the Executive needs to have in place a process for establishing,
maintaining and reviewing the system of internal control and risk management.
Regulation 4 states that;

“The relevant body is responsible for ensuring that the financial management of the
body is adequate and effective and that the body has a sound system of internal
control which facilitates the effective exercise of that body’s functions and which
includes arrangements for the management of risk”.

“The relevant body must conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness
of its system of internal control” and “following the review, the body must approve an
annual governance statement prepared in accordance with proper practices in
relation to internal control’.

CIPFA/SOLACE have produced a governance framework for the creation of an
Annual Governance Statement (AGS). This has been adopted and applied as
proper practice by the Executive.

The opinion on internal control provided by Internal Audit, based upon the risk -
based audit plan, is one of the key elements to consider when compiling the AGS.
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Scope of Internal Audit Opinion 2013/14

In providing our annual audit opinion, it should be noted that assurance can never be
absolute. The most that internal audit can provide is a reasonable assurance that
there are no major weaknesses in risk management, governance and control
processes.

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during
our internal audit work in the financial year 2013/14 and are not necessarily a
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the
improvements that may be required.

In arriving at our opinion, the following matters have been taken into account;
« The results of all internal audits undertaken during the year ended 31 March
2014.

* The results of follow-up reviews of action taken to address audit
recommendations.

*  Whether or not any significant recommendations have not been accepted by
management and the consequent risks.

+ The effects of any material changes in the Executive’s objectives and
activities.

Annual Opinion 2013/14

From the work undertaken during the financial year 2013/14 and taking
into account other sources of assurance, Internal Audit have reached the
opinion that the Executive’s framework of governance, risk management
and control is operating adequately and that there are no outstanding
significant issues arising from the work undertaken by Internal Audit at the
time of writing this report.
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In reaching our opinion the following factors were considered;

Risk Management

Risk Framework

During the period a review of risk management arrangements was
undertaken. Whilst recognising that progress had been made in the
development of risk management arrangements, it was identified that the
Executive should consider improvements to the identification of the
organisation’s risk appetite and the application of tolerances and constraints
to determine the significance of individual risks. The review also recognised
opportunities to re-evaluate and agree strategic risks, aligned to corporate
objectives once it is amalgamated into the West Yorkshire Combined
Authority.

Overall, it was concluded that risk management arrangements are adequate
to demonstrate an acceptable level of control.

Project Risks

Two reviews were performed to examine the approach to risk management
within major projects. It was established that arrangements broadly complied
with the PRINCEZ2 framework and that overall controls operated to adequately
manage project risks.

Governance

Yorcard Ltd — Corporate Governance

A review considered corporate governance arrangements in relation to
Yorcard Ltd. This is a company limited by guarantee established jointly by
South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive and West Yorkshire
Passenger Transport Executive to deliver an integrated smart ticketing
infrastructure in Yorkshire. The review examined the corporate governance
arrangements in operation with particular emphasis on providing assurance to
the Executive that its interests are protected. The primary recommendations
concerned the provision of a statement of the review of internal control within
the organisation’s published financial accounts and improvements to
consultation and communication of matters considered by Yorcard’s Board.

Code of Corporate Governance

Consideration of the proposed code of corporate governance and scrutiny
arrangements required for the creation of the West Yorkshire Combined
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Authority was undertaken along with an evaluation of the impact these
arrangements would have on the operations of the internal audit function and
future assurance requirements.

Project Management

Reviews of the project governance arrangements for the Pay & Grading and
Castleford Bus Station Development projects were undertaken to assess
compliance with PRINCEZ2 project management principles. In addition, work
to identify an assurance strategy and the regular review of these
arrangements for the SCIPS program was provided.

It was established that improvements are being realised to the way in which
projects are managed and recorded as a direct result of the introduction of the
framework.

Contract Management

A review of Metro’s processes for the management and control of contractors
engaged for the cleaning, repair and maintenance of Metro facilities identified
the need to develop the co-ordination and increase transparency of the control
of contractors process across the organisation. It was also recognised that
Metro’s strategy for the selection and review of works undertaken by
contractors should be further developed.

Our opinion was that arrangements for the control of contractors require
improvement. In response the Executive have now initiated measures to
address these issues.

Internal Control

Of the 13 reports provided relating to internal control, internal audit assurance levels
were, 5 well controlled, 7 controlled and 1 requires improvement. A description of
internal audit assurance categories is provided in the appendix to this report.

Recommendations identified as a result of the audit assignments in respect of
internal control included;

¢ A requirement to improve control in relation to the identification and
monitoring of levels of smart ticket stocks held with third-parties prior to
them being uploaded with customer details and activated.

e That system user access rights for the “innovator” customer database
system be improved to provide appropriate access and alignment with
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each individual’s processing responsibilities.

e Strengthening of controls to ensure the robustness and integrity of data
extracted from the English National Concessions Travel Scheme
(ENCTS) database system for reporting requirements.

e That issues affecting the future delivery of smart card system “hot list”
functionality be addressed and that controls be determined to prevent
the fraudulent use of smart cards prior to roll out.

Third-Party Assurance

Arrangements are in place to enable Metro tickets to be sold through post
offices and rail ticket offices. Under these agreements, organisations are
required to periodically provide information relating to the value of sales,
commissions and spoils.

A feature of the overall control environment is that these organisations
operate robust systems to safeguard ticket stocks and that provide accurate
information concerning sales income received and the levels of stockholding.
For 2013/14 the Executive have received assurance statements from the Post
Office and Northern Rail in relation to the operation of key controls operating
within these processes.

Leeds City Council (LCC) provides treasury management and related financial
services under the conditions of a service level agreement. Internal Audit
have performed some limited testing of aspects of the processes operated by
LCC under this agreement. In addition assurances provided by LCC,
including the certification of financial information and the opinion issued by the
council’s own internal audit section were obtained and found to be
satisfactory.

Summary of Whistleblowing Cases

Internal Audit continues to act as the primary contact point for Metro’s
Whistleblowing Policy. Arrangements to improve accessibility to information
and mechanisms to make protected disclosures are provided on the
Executive’s web site. In addition, information providing details of the
Executive’s’ anti-fraud, bribery & corruption arrangements and how to report
concerns about suspected fraud and/or corruption were provided to
employees.

During the period no referrals were made to Internal Audit.

The Disciplinary, Conduct and Capability Policy and Procedure includes
guidance where suspected bribery, fraud or corruption is identified.

Page 6 of 17

36



Internal Audit Annual Report 2013/14

Audit Performance

Conformance with PSIAS

A self-review of compliance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS) and Local Government Application Note has been undertaken. This has
been delivered through the completion of the checklist for assessing conformance
with the PSIAS and Local Government Application Note as produced by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.

Overall internal audit complies with the requirements of the PSIAS and Local
Government Application Note although, as with any new standards, there are some
areas which need to be developed further.

Areas of Accepted Non Compliance

The self-review has identified two areas for which there is no associated action and
by which Internal Audit are proposing to accept the residual risk. This because after
close analysis of the requirement and a review of current controls already in place,
the implementation of an action plan to meet the requirement would be
disproportionate. Existing controls in place are sufficient and operating well

The two areas of non-compliance are:

¢ The Chief Executive does not undertake, countersign, contribute
feedback to or review the performance appraisal of the Chief Audit
Executive.

e Feedback is not sought from the chair of the Governance & Audit
Committee for the Chief Audit Executive’s appraisal.

The performance appraisal of the Chief Audit Executive is undertaken by the
Director, Resources in line with the Executive’s development processes. This is
considered as an adequate and robust method of providing feedback on
performance.

After consideration of the application of these controls, the areas of non-compliance
are regarded as low risk.

Areas for Action

2050 Coordination - Assurance mapping
The CAE has identified all areas of assurance within the audit universe.

However, it is accepted that a formal assurance mapping exercise needs to
be developed as part of the process of identifying and determining the
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approach to using other sources of assurance.

2110 Governance - Ethics

Internal audit have not performed a specific review of the Executive’s ethics-
related objectives, programmes and activities. The CAE will continue to
monitor the level of audit risk in this area and update the Audit Plan to
accommodate this work if this becomes necessary.

2110 Governance - Information Technology Governance

I.T. governance arrangements were not covered within the scope of the
2013/14 internal audit plan. Audit risks have been assessed throughout the
year and, as a result a strategic review of I.T. has been included within the
2014/15 Plan.

1210 Proficiency — CMIIA

The Chef Audit Executive is an experienced audit professional and a member
of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors heads of internal audit service.
During 2014 he has applied for full CMIIA status.

Quality Assurance & Improvement Plan (QAIP)

The QAIP covers all types of Internal Audit activities and is designed to provide
reasonable assurance that Internal Audit:

. Performs its work in accordance with its Charter, which is consistent
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, Definition of Internal
Auditing and Code of Ethics;

. Operates in an efficient and effective manner;

o Is adding value and continually improving Internal Audit’s operations

The self-review forms part of internal audit’s Quality Assurance and Improvement
Program, (QAIP). Other elements of the QAIP require audit assignments to be
subject to a supervisory quality check to ensure that the objectives have been
achieved and that recommendations made are consistent with the findings and
evidence recorded. In addition, feedback questionnaires which ask managers to
assess the overall performance of the audit, the auditor’'s approach, and the quality
of the report are issued on completion of each individual review.
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Continuing Professional Development

In a changing environment it is important that Internal Auditors are kept informed of
the latest audit methodologies, changes in legislation as well as changes to the
public sector arena so they can have the necessary skills and knowledge to fulfil
their roles. Primarily, this is provided through the Institute of Internal Auditors
professional briefings and the Executive’s development review processes aligned
with professional competences. This enables strengths and weaknesses to be
identified and allows training to be focused on each individual’s specific
requirements.

Reporting

Arrangements for reporting on internal audit activities have continued through the
Audit Committee. The Group’s primary roles are to promote internal control through
a systematic review of internal control procedures and to consider arrangements
relating to internal and external audit. The Terms of Reference for the Audit
Committee were reviewed in March 2013.

Measures for the recording, reporting and follow-up of audit recommendations have

continued through the use of Covalent, the Executive’s corporate performance
management system.

Page 9 of 17

39



Internal Audit Annual Report 2013/14

Performance Indicators

A range of performance indicators have been developed for Internal Audit

based on costs for 2013/14 and other identified timescales.

Benchmark®

Actual  Average
Cost Per Audit Day £197 £273
Mainline Audit Days Per £m Turnover 2.81 2.68
Cost Per Auditor £41350 £51190
Days Per Auditor 184 183
Sickness Days 2.8 5.6
Annual Audit Plan
Completion of audit reviews identified within the plan — Target 100%
Actual performance 98%
Client Feedback
Post audit client questionnaire ratings of “2” or better - Target 90%
Actual performance 95%
Issuing Reports
Internal Audit reports to be circulated within 5 working days of
audit closure — Target 90%
Actual performance 78%
Fraud Response
Formally respond to notifications of suspected fraud, bribery
or corruption within 2 working days — Target 100%
Actual performance 100%

This data confirms that the Internal Audit function is performing well against
public sector benchmarks and is attaining the targets set. However, the one
area for improvement concerns the issuing of internal audit reports. From

April 2014 arrangements for senior officer review of draft reports has changed.

This should result in an improvement against this performance indicator.

L CIPFA auditing benchmark comparator
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Client Feedback

As part of internal audit’'s commitment to ensuring the highest professional standards
and to ensure that we are continually improving the quality of work produced, a
customer satisfaction questionnaire is issued at the end of each audit assignment.
The responses received have been analysed and indicate good scores in all criteria.

The cumulative results from questionnaires completed throughout 2013/14 are:

Question 112 1] 3| 4
1 | Communication prior to the audit work was 9 2

appropriate and | was aware of visit dates and audit

objectives.

2 | Throughout the audit process | was kept informed of | 7 4
the work being done and issues arising.

3 | Internal audit staff demonstrated a good 9 2
understanding of the business and associated risks
(or took the time to develop such understanding
during the audit process).

4 | Internal audit staff demonstrated a pragmatic 6 4 1
approach to developing solutions to issues identified
during the audit.

5 | The audit report was issued in a timely fashion and 5 4 2
was a fair summary of audit findings and
management responses.

6 | Internal audit staff acted in a professional manner 9 2
throughout the assignment.

Scale ;
1 = Strongly agree, 2 = Agree, 3 = Disagree, 4 Strongly disagree

Audit Plan 2013/14
Details of the work performed by Internal Audit in 2013/14 are provided below;
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Audit Area Assurance Directorate Status
Periodic report and claim | Resources Completed
:2;?/258 gggg;r certification including Passenger
Certification physical verifications. Services
Development
Examination, input and Resources Completed
AGS - Support & Input provision of information in
support of the annual
governance statement.
To identify costs Passenger Completed
Value for Money — associated with the Services
Estate Management provision of Metro
facilities and compare
them with national public
sector indicators.
Health &Safety Policy Resources Completed
Health & Safety meets legal requirements | Passenger
as provided in the Health | Services
& Safety at Work Act. Development
Adequacy of ticket sales, | Passenger Completed
;:i\éildgfen;re cash handling, security, Services
reconciliation and review
processes.
Systems and procedures | Resources Completed
LTP Capital Programme | operated to control the Passenger
Management allocation of payments Services
and provide evidence of Development
eligible expenditure.
Anti-Fraud & Corruption Completion of annual Resources Completed
fraud return Passenger
Services
Development
Tendering arrangements, | Passenger Completed
batches, de minimis Services

Tendered Services

contracts, insurance,
operator’s licences, lost
mileage, payment
calculations and
processes. Contract
compliance measures for
public and education
services.
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Audit Area

Assurance

Directorate

Status

LTP Block Settlement —
Audit & Certification

Head of |A assurance.

Examination of
certifications provided by
local authorities.

Resources
Passenger
Services
Development

Completed

Procurement

Review of the existence
and operation of key
controls including
tendering, ordering,
commitments,
compliance with soff’s, e-
procurement processes.

Passenger
Services

Completed

Project Governance
Arrangements — Pay &
Grading

Compliance with
PRINCE2 project
management framework.

Resources

Completed

Prepaid Tickets &
Concessionary Travel

Arrangements for
accounting for stocks,
cash, Haven system
controls and reporting,
calculations of prepaid
ticket pool and
distribution,
concessionary fares
reimbursements, on
account payments and
quarterly adjustments.

Passenger
Services

Completed

English National
Concessions Travel
Scheme

Data handling and
protection requirements,
access rights to ENCTS
database, agreements
with the third parties
concerning the handling
and maintenance of
ENCTS data.

Validation rules for
applicants to provide
evidence of identity,
residency and a photo.

Passenger
Services

Completed

Castleford Bus Station
Development — Project
Assurance

Compliance with
PRINCE2 project
management framework

Development

Completed
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Audit Area Assurance Directorate Status
Review of the operation Resources Completed
of key controls including

Payroll arrangements for
Starters, leavers, pay
points, members’
allowances, expenses &
deductions.
Raising fraud awareness | Resources Completed
Counter Fraud through internal Passenger
communications. Services
Development
Review of the operation Resources Completed
ITA Cashbook/Treasury $_f key controls including
Management reasury.manag.ement,
segregation, review,
authorisation, third part
services and assurances.
SCIPS Program Review of program Passenger Completed
Assurance assurance arrangements. | Services
Development
Test arrangements for Resources Completed
Debtors Write _offs, requisitioning,
reporting, review of
accounts, debt age
monitoring and reporting.
To assess the corporate Passenger Completed
Yorcard Governance governance arrangements | Services
in operation with particular
arrangements . L
emphasis on providing
assurance to Metro that its
interests are protected
Unannounced Stock & Cash ups, stock counts Passenger Completed
Cash Checks throughout Metro Services
Resources
Assess the reliability of Resources Completed
systems for ensuring that | Passenger
Risk Management risk management Services

arrangements are
adequately administrated,
authorised and recorded.

Development
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Audit Area

Assurance

Directorate

Status

Creditors Systems

Review of the operation
of key controls including
Segregation,
authorisation,
reconciliation of
statements and bacs
controls.

Resources

Completed

Main Accounting
Systems

Review of the operation
of key controls including
System user rights,
review, control, adequacy
and timeliness, budgetary
control, systems interface
— education, haven, and
payroll.

Resources

Completed

NGT — Project
Assurance

Examination of project
risk management
arrangements

Development.

Completed

LSSE - Project
Assurance

Examination of project
risk management
arrangements

Development.

Completed

Value for Money Review
- H.R.

To identify costs
associated with the
provision of H.R.
functionality and compare
them with national public
sector indicators.

Resources

Drafted

Gifts, Interests &
Hospitality -

Adequacy of
arrangements, review of
records, procedures,
controls

Resources
Passenger
Services

Development.

Completed

Operator Farebox
Revenue Reviews -

Review of information
provided by operators.
Declared revenue
checked to operators
accounting records and
prime documentation.

Passenger
Services

Completed

Expenses & Allowances

Review of officer
expenses reimbursed

Resources
Passenger
Services
Development

Completed
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Audit Area Assurance Directorate Status
Consultation into code of | Resources Completed
corporate governance Passenger
and scrutiny Services
arrangements for Development

Code of Corporate Comt?ined Authority. i
Governance .
Impact on |.A. operations
and provision of
assurance.
Adding Value

Throughout the year we have provided advice over and above the core objectives of
giving internal control assurance and recommending effective systems
improvements to management.

This included:;

Adding value through the strategic focus of internal audit and adopting a
risk-based approach by linking work in the strategic audit plan to the
Executive’s corporate risks.

We identified changes to the original audit plan in response to changing
priorities and activities undertaken in the year.

In undertaking our reviews we specifically focused on the Executive’s own
controls and the wider control environment, providing advice and examples
of best practice.

We have assisted the Executive in the further development of risk
management through consultation and a specific review of risk
management and by consideration of risks as part of each individual audit
assignment. In addition, advice has been provided in relation to achieving
improvements to the risk culture within Metro.

Undertaken work in addition to the internal audit plan in relation to the
development of smart card systems and other project assurance activities.

Value for Money

Internal audit have completed value for money reviews of processes in operation for
estate management and the provision of H.R. services. Actions resulting from these
reviews include the development of measures to improve energy consumption at
Metro facilities and improve the effectiveness of the provision of H.R. services.
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Appendix

Assurance Level

Definition

There is arobust control framework in place for the
system.

All necessary controls are in place and are operating
effectively.

Any recommendations made are low risk and relate to
enhancements of existing controls.

Controlled

There is an acceptable control framework in place.
*Key controls are in place and operating effectively.

Some changes to controls and how they operate would
be beneficial.

Recommendations made are moderate or a combination
of moderate and low risk, including the development of
existing controls, and do not relate to key controls.

Requires
Improvement

Controls in place for some elements of the system are
not always appropriate or effective or are not
consistently applied.

Recommendations made are of high or a combination of
high and moderate risk concerning the operation of key
controls.

There is an inadequate control framework.
*Key controls are absent or not operating.

The operation of the system is currently providing an
unacceptable risk.

Recommendations made are high risk concerning the
operation of key controls.
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Originator: Angela Taylor,
Director, Resources

ITEM 10
Report to: Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 29 July 2014
Subject: Review of Internal Control and Effectiveness of Internal Audit
1 Purpose
1.1 Toinform the Committee of the outcome of a review of internal control and the

2.1

2.2

effectiveness of internal audit.
Information

There is a requirement under the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011
that ‘The relevant body must conduct a review at least once in a year of the
effectiveness of its system of internal control.....The findings...must be
considered....by the members of the body meeting as a whole.” There is a further
requirement that ‘A larger relevant body must, at least once in each year, conduct a
review of the effectiveness of its internal audit. The findings of the review...must be
considered, as part of the consideration of the system of internal control ... by the
committee or body...” As a Combined Authority the appropriate body to consider
these reviews is the WYCA via a recommendation from the Governance and Audit
Committee.

The review of the system of internal control is effectively set out in the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS) which is required to be included in the annual
accounts. This sets out the governance framework in place during the year and is in
accordance with the guidance set out by CIPFA/SOLACE. It is also informed by the
work undertaken by internal audit in the year and their overall conclusion in their
Internal Audit Annual Report which is ‘From the work undertaken during the
financial year 2013/14 and taking into account other sources of assurance, Internal
Audit have reached the opinion that key systems are operating adequately and that
there were no fundamental breakdowns of controls resulting in material
discrepancy.’ The AGS for the year to 31 March 2014 is included in the 2013/14
annual accounts under item 11 on this agenda.
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2.3

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

The Director Resources has undertaken a review of internal audit, using the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) checklist and the information in the Internal
Audit Annual Report which sets out the work undertaken in the year. The overall
conclusion is that the internal audit function complies with the necessary standards
and has worked to an adequate standard during the year. There are a few instances
of non-compliance with the PSIAS but these are deemed immaterial (they include for
instance the non-involvement of the Chair of the Governance and Audit in staffing
appraisals for the Internal Audit Manager) and a number of partial compliance
mainly arising from the transition from previous working arrangements to those
appropriate for the WYCA governance. These areas will be addressed as the
governance arrangements of the Combined Authority are developed during 2014/15.

Financial Implications

None arising directly from this report.
Legal Implications

None arising directly from this report.
Staffing Implications

None arising directly from this report.
Recommendations

That the Committee approve the outcome of the review of internal control and of
the effectiveness of internal audit.
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Originator: Angela Taylor
Director, Resources

ITEM 11
Report to: Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 22 July 2014
Subject: Internal Controls and Financial Monitoring
1. Purpose
1.1. To consider any changes to the arrangements for internal control in the West

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

Yorkshire Combined Authority since the last meeting of the Committee and to
consider the current financial position.

Information

This paper is provided to each meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee and
provides information and assurance on governance issues. Any changes to, or
failures of, internal control will be reported along with significant risk issues and an
update on the budget position for the current year.

Internal controls

There have been no significant changes to internal controls in the period. Key
financial controls continue to be carried out monthly and recorded on the
performance management system; these are monitored at monthly management
meetings and are all up to date. In addition regular governance meetings continue
to be held with Leeds City Council to consider and review the transactions relating to
investments, treasury management being carried out jointly with LCC.

Financial monitoring — revenue budgets

The final position for the 2013/14 budget is covered by a separate agenda item
which seeks approval to the annual accounts for the year.

The 2014/15 budget was set by the former West Yorkshire Integrated Transport

Authority in February 2014 and re-endorsed by the WYCA at its meetings in April and
May. Set out below is the current position against that approved budget.
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2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

WEST YORKSHIRE COMBINED AUTHORITY BUDGET

All £000's Original Latest
budget | Estimate
2014/15 | 2014/15

Concessionary travel 53,242 53,672
Subsidised Senvices 19,490 19,005
Passenger Senvices 8,172 8,185
Prepaid Tickets 31,000 31,000
Rail - Franchise Costs 64,209 64,209
Rail - additional senvices 182 182
Pensions 1,431 1,431
Savings/cuts 0 0
Financing charges 7,356 7,270
Combined Authority 67 67
Strategic priorities-rail devVQC's 250 250
Development & Corporate 6,045 6,134

191,444 191,405

Prepaid Tickets -31,000 -31,000
Special Rail Grant -64,209 -64,209
Lewy -96,198 -96,198
Use of reserves 37 -2
Remaining reserves at year end 5,892 6,572
Reserves at 31 March 14 6,570

Expenditure so far this year is in line with budget, with an increase in concessionary
travel reimbursement costs being offset by savings on bus tendered services. There
are a few minor variations on other lines but nothing of any significance. The
improvement in the projected reserves by the end of the year reflects the improved
year end position which is reported in the item on the annual accounts elsewhere on
this agenda.

Work is underway to update the medium term financial strategy which will inform
the budget process for 2015/16.

Financial monitoring — capital budgets

Capital spending on transport in West Yorkshire has been guided by the statutory
West Yorkshire Local Transport Plan. The LTP covering 2011-2026 was produced
jointly by the ITA with the District Councils and three year delivery programmes have
subsequently been jointly developed.

The final expenditure on capital for 2013/14 is set out in the agenda item on the
annual accounts.

The outline capital budget for 2014/15 was approved by the Integrated Transport
Authority at its meeting in February, along with the allocation to partners, in
accordance with the joint three year delivery programme. It was recognised at that
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2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.

2.14.

2.15.

time, and upon the subsequent re-approval of that funding and programme by the
WYCA in April, that this may need to be reviewed following the submission of the
LEP’s Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) for local growth funds.

The announcement on 7 July of the Leeds City Region Growth Deal of significant
funding for the West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund will necessitate a review of the
resources required to deliver the Fund. A number of other transport schemes
included in the SEP bid did not receive funding through this process and it will be
necessary therefore to establish if the current LTP funded programme or indeed the
WY+TF schemes require revising. The request from the WYCA to put together a
single transport plan will assist in confirming and identifying those priorities.

Notwithstanding these reviews there are a number of schemes in the capital
programme that are already underway and continue to make good progress. These
include Leeds Station Southern Entrance, rail stations at Low Moor, Kirkstall Forge
and Apperley Bridge, smartcards and the cycle superhighway. An element of funding
has been carried forward from 2013/14 to assist in funding these schemes. At
present all transport capital expenditure is funded by grant in the form of the
Integrated Transport Block or through specific funding awards such as Local
Sustainable Growth Fund and Department for Transport major scheme funding. The
IT Block funding is transferable from one year to the next; most of the other project
specific funding is subject to certain deadlines. Of the schemes currently being
delivered in 2014/15 adequate funding is available for them all.

Funding is paid quarterly to the Districts to enable this to progress and regular
reporting and monitoring of the programme implementation is carried out.

Risk management

The risk management arrangements that were in place for the ITA and PTE have
been adapted for the WYCA. At its last meeting the Committee noted the revised
risk policy statement.

The risk policy and manual which set out the detailed arrangements for risk
management in the organisation have been updated to reflect the change to a
Combined Authority. This reconfirms the arrangements in place for risk and the
reporting of any changes to existing risks or emergence of new risks. Detailed risk
registers at departmental and project level continue to be regularly reviewed and
monitored. No significant changes to risks have been identified through this process
since the last meeting of this Committee. A revised overarching strategic risk
register for the organisation is under development and will be brought to the next
meeting of this committee for consideration.

The Annual Governance Statement which accompanies the annual accounts forms
part of another agenda item and includes a review of governance arrangements in
place, including risk management. Similarly the internal audit annual report gives an
opinion on the risk management arrangements that were in place during the
previous year.
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3.1.

4.1.

5.1.

6.1.

Financial implications
As set out in the report.

Legal Implications

None arising directly from this report.

Staffing Implications

None arising directly from this report.

Recommendations

That the Committee note the report.
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Originator: Angela Taylor
Director, Resources

ITEM 12
Report to: Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 29 July 2014
Subject: Approval of Annual Accounts for 2013/14
1. Purpose
1.1. To present to the Committee the annual accounts for2013/14 for the West Yorkshire

1.2.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

Passenger Transport Executive (WYPTE) and the West Yorkshire Integrated Transport
Authority (WYITA).

For the Committee to recommend approval of these accounts to the West Yorkshire
Combined Authority (WYCA).

Information

At its last meeting this Committee considered the plans produced by the external
auditor Deloitte for their audit of the WYITA and WYPTE, the WYCA being the body
required to approve these accounts following the dissolution of them at 31 March
and their transfer to the WYCA.

The annual accounts have now been produced and Deloitte has completed its audit
work. This report provides the information required to consider the accounts and
recommend them to the WYCA for approval. The following appendices are attached:

Appendix1  Final accounts of WYITA

Appendix 2  Final accounts of WYPTE

Appendix 3  Treasury management statement
Appendix4 Schedule of capital expenditure in the year
Appendix 5 Auditors’ final report on WYITA

Appendix 6  Auditors’ final report on WYPTE

The statutory deadline for the approval of the annual accounts is 30 September. In

line with the approach taken in previous years the accounts closedown, production
and audit takes place in early summer. Following this Committee’s consideration of
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2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

the accounts a report will be taken to the next meeting of the WYCA, on 18
September, to formally approve the accounts. The draft accounts were approved for
audit by the s151 officer, in accordance with legislation.

Both sets of accounts have been prepared on an International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) basis in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting UK. Having been prepared on this basis for some years the
format and presentation of the accounts has changed little since last year.

There are a number of accounting matters common to both sets of accounts which
are drawn to the Committee’s attention. The Committee is also asked to note that
there are still one or two minor disclosure amendments to the accounts being
discussed but these will not have any impact on the figures presented or the results
for the year.

International Accounting Standard (IAS)19 Employee Benefits requires a particular
accounting treatment of pension costs and liabilities. In effect the accounts provide
a snapshot in time of the organisation’s element of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund
at the balance sheet date, based on information from the actuaries. In common with
most local authorities this results in a deficit on the scheme but under the Account
and Audit Regulations (England) 2011 this apparent deficit is funded by the creation
of a corresponding reserve. The reality is that the deficit in the scheme is being
addressed through the annual employer contribution rates set by the actuary and
will reduce within the required timescales. The liability will only crystallise should
either the West Yorkshire Pension Fund cease to exist or the WYITA/WYPTE cease to
exist without a successor organisation to take on the liability. The West Yorkshire
Combined Authority has taken on this responsibility as part of the statutory order
that created it.

The going concern principle is always required to be considered as part of the year
end process. The outcome of the accounting entries for pensions set out in the
previous paragraph results in a negative balance sheet which would ordinarily give
rise to a question regarding going concern. However, as explained it is not thought
likely that the deficit will crystallise hence going concern is not relevant. Itis
however also relevant in the context of the dissolution of the organisations and their
replacement with the WYCA. The IFRS Code’s underlying assumption is that
accounts shall be prepared on a going concern basis where the functions of the
‘authority’ will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Transfers of services under combinations of public sector bodies do not negate the
presumption of going concern. The West Yorkshire Combined Authority Order 2014
confirms that the functions, assets and liabilities of the WYPTE and WYITA continue
under a Combined Authority and this is the basis for adopting the going concern
principle.

Impairment — officers have considered, in preparing the accounts, whether there are
any circumstances arising in the year that would trigger the need for an impairment
review of the carrying value of the properties of the WYITA and WYPTE. The
conclusion is that there are none.
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2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.

2.14.

Accounting policies — these have not changed from those approved in previous
years.

Final accounts of the WYITA (Appendix 1)

WYITA’s accounts include the financial statements for the WYITA as a single entity
and group accounts which consolidate the results of the WYPTE. The accounts
comply fully with the required accounting standards but the statutory format of the
income and expenditure account both summarises the majority of expenditure into
one line and also does not require a comparison against budget. The foreword to
the accounts shows perhaps a more useful presentation comparing the actual results
against the budget detail as agreed at the WYITA budget meeting and endorsed by
the WYCA at its inaugural meeting. In both instances the key figure to note is the use
of reserves figure which is the same in both presentations.

The overall result for the year for the group ie WYITA and WYPTE combined is a
transfer to reserves of £2m compared to the budgeted position of £1.4m.
Concessionary travel costs were very slightly over budget (by £73k), along with bus
tendered services (£92k) but savings have been recorded on all other budget lines.
Financing costs were £34k lower than budget due to the increased income generated
by higher than expected cash balances. Staffing savings were made across all areas
as a result of vacancy savings and in addition there was a reduction in planned
consultancy expenditure and on the costs of setting up the WYCA. Savings have
been made across a range of contracts in place, including printing, bus real time
systems and bus station security costs.

The balance sheet is in line with 2012/13 with the exception of short term
investment and grants received in advance. As set out in the Treasury Management
Statement below the WYITA has received a large number of grants in advance which
has increased short term cash balances. These have then been invested in
accordance with the policy.

Final accounts of the WYPTE (Appendix 2)

The net cost of the activities of the WYPTE is funded by a grant from the WYITA and
hence the result for the year for the WYPTE is a breakeven position. A narrative
regarding the expenditure for the year against that budgeted is covered within the
commentary above regarding the results for the group.

Treasury Management statement (Appendix 3)

The Treasury management statement and report for the year is set out in appendix
3. Whilst this refers to the WYITA the same prudential borrowing rules will apply to
the WYCA and the arrangements in place are being continued through to 2014/15.
The announcement of the Local Growth Fund and the significant funding for the
West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund will necessitate a review of the current treasury
management arrangements. In addition there is an intent for the WYCA to become
the accountable body for the LEP from 1 April 2015 and again this will impact on the
current arrangements.
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2.15.

2.16.

2.17.

2.18.

2.19.

2.20.

2.21.

2.22.

Capital expenditure (Appendix 4)

Capital expenditure in 2013/14 totalled £57.661m, for which a grant of £49.784m
was made from the WYITA to the WYPTE. An LTP Integrated Transport Block grant of
£19.318m was received in the year, as well as a Highways Maintenance grant of
£25.511m. Funding was also received from successful bids to the Cycle City Ambition
Fund, Better Bus areas and green technology. Elements of funding will be carried
forward to 2014/15.

Capital schemes in the year include a number of highways works, investment in
shelter replacements, a new website, contributions to rail schemes as well as
preparatory work on the NGT trolleybus scheme, rail stations and Leeds Station
Southern Entrance.

A full schedule of capital expenditure undertaken in 2013/14 is shown in Appendix 4
with the funding included in the treasury statement at appendix 3.

Auditors Final Report (Appendices 5 and 6)

Deloitte have completed their audit work on the annual accounts and their
conclusions are set out in their Final Reports. The Committee is required to consider
these reports before considering approving the annual accounts. The Audit Manager
will be in attendance at the meeting to present their reports and answer any
questions.

The two reports are inevitably very similar, with any matters considered for the
WYPTE being valid for the WYITA as it forms part of the group accounts. The key
messages are set out in the ‘Big Picture’ on page 1 of the reports which confirm that
an unmodified audit opinion is to be given on the financial statements and an
unqualified value for money conclusion.

The rest of the reports go on to consider how the audit risks identified at the
planning stage have been addressed and the outcome of that work. They also set
out observations on the internal control environment. In all these areas there are no
findings or deficiencies that the WYCA is required to address.

Prior to approval of the accounts in September the auditors will require a
representation letter to be signed by management. This is a standard part of the
process and effectively provides assurances that the WYCA has provided all
necessary information and disclosures to the auditors.

Prior to presenting the annual accounts to the WYCA in September for approval
Deloitte will consider with management whether anything has occurred in the period
from this meeting to the date of the signing of the accounts which would require any
changes to the accounts. If this is the case then this will be set out in full in the
report to the WYCA.
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2.23.

3.1.

4.1.

5.1.

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

The Committee should also note that in order for Deloitte to issue an audit
completion notice as well as the audit opinion they need to audit the Whole of
Government Accounts submission. This is, as usual, being done over the summer
and is expected to be complete by the time the WYCA is asked to approve the
accounts.

Financial implications

The audit fee is set nationally by the Audit Commission and is included in the WYCA’s
2014/15 budget. Future audit fees will be the subject of a consultation process with
the Audit Commission.

Legal Implications

None arising directly from this report.

Staffing Implications

None arising directly from this report.

Recommendations

That the revenue and capital grants to the WYPTE as set out in the report be
recommended for approval.

That the Treasury Management policy and report and that the methods of capital
funding in appendix 3 be recommended for approval.

That Deloitte’s final reports be noted.

That the Committee recommend for approval to the WYCA the attached annual
accounts for the WYITA and WYPTE for the year ended 31 March 2014.
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Appendix 1

West Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority

Statement of Accounts

For the year ending 31 March 2014
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West Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority and Passenger

Transport Executive
Wellington House, 40/50 Weilington Street, Leeds LS1 2DE

Explanatory Foreword to the Annuai Accounts 2013/14

The Annual Review and Accounts document has been prepared fo provide an outline of the activities of the
Autherity and Executive (The Group) for the year 2013/14. This Review sets out how progress has been made
towards the 20 year vision and the Local Transport Plan utilising the funds available. It is not exhaustive thus
further information is available from the West Yorkshire Combined Authority, if required, in relation to the various
aspects of activity described.

Responsibilities

The integrated Transpert Authority is responsible for determining public transport policies in West Yorkshire and
for providing funds to the Executive to carry them out. in 2013/14 the Authoerity provided a revenue grant to the
Executive of £86.752m fo cover the costs of meeting those policies. The attached statements show the grant to
the Executive and the sources of funding. The Executive’s accounts indicate the use made of those funds.

West Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority has the statutory duty of producing the Local Transport Plan and, in
partnership with the District Councits, has preduced LTP3, branded 'MyJourney' for the period 2011-2028.
Enhanced governance arrangements as set out below will ensure continuing effective delivery of the objectives of
LTP3.

From 1 April 2014 the responsibilities and the activities of the West Yorkshire PTE and iTA have been transferred
to to the newly created West Yorkshire Combined Authority. More information on this is set out in the review of the
year below.

Review of the year

2013/14 is the third year of the third Local Transport Plan (LTP3) which covers the period 2011 to 20268. LTP3
was developed in partnership with the five West Yorkshire District Councils and is based on a strategic approach to
allocating resources in order to deliver the vision of 'Connecting people and places.' Detailed governance and
menitoring arrangements that were set up at the start of the first year are now firmly embedded and have seen
good progress in continuing to deliver the initial three year implementation plans which have been drawn up at
District level. Key schemes that have been delivered inciude a wide range of road and junction improvements
across the county as weli as station improvements, bus station enhancements and significant progress on major
schemes such as NGT and Rail Growth.

The financial climate continues to provide challenges. Metro undertook to make over £5m savings per annum from
the bus tendered network through a series of reviews commencing in 2011/12. These reviews, covering all West
Yorkshire Districts, are now complete and have achieved the required savings whilst still maintaining a viable
network for users. All areas of activity have been re-examined as part of the budget process to seek to achieve
cost reductions whilst improving income opportunities.

Despite budgetary pressures and continuing reductions in staffing numbers Metro has continued to deliver further
service innovations and improve key customer satisfaction scores as demonstrated by the Passenger Focus
survey. The new Metro website was launched in Aprit 2013 and was aimed in particular at improving access to
travel information on the move, using mobile phones or tablets. Usage statistics show an increase in the number of
pages accessed on the move,

Work is ongoing to develop the case for a statutory bus quality contract scheme. Discussions with operators on a
partnership approach have been continuing in parallel, with a focus on seeking agreement on integrated ticketing,
value for money and increased competition. :

Metro was successful in winning government funding for the Cycle City Connect project, a £28m scheme to
construct a cycte superhighway between Leeds and Bradford. it also secured £1m from the clean bus technology
fund which has been used to improve the emissions of the fleet of MyBuses.

Funding won last year through the Loca! Sustainable Transpert Fund (LSTF) has continued to be utilised to

enhance improvements in active transport modes, including cycling and travel planning as well as access to the
Yorkshire Dales.
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Foreword to the Annual Accounts 2013/14 (continued)

Similarly the Better Bus Areas Fund (BBAF) funding has continued to be used to expand the activities already
underway to progress the roil out of smartcards across West Yorkshire. The majority of buses in the region are now
equipped to read smart products, a number of which have now been registered under the name MCard. 11-16
concessionary entitiement passes, school and boarding cards and annual metrocards have now been issued on
smartcards with further products to be launched in early 2014/15. In April passengers will be able to purchase and
top up MCards at Payzone outiets as well as at post offices and trave! centres.

Work continues to maximise the proposed introduction of the High Speed 2 rail link to Leeds, with work underway to
gstablish options to improve the Jocal network and utilise released capacity. Metro is working closely with other
northern PTEs and councils and the Department for Transport to make the case for partnership working on the
management of the local rail franchises to the region. Short term extensions o the Northern and Trans-pennine
franchises have been let whilst work progresses on shaping the new franchises to be let in 2016.

The latest phase of work to improve car parking provision at rail stations has seen a new car park compieted at New
Pudsey. The new and improved Wakefield Westgate Station is now open and Metro ptays a key role in the
redevelopment underway to improve Wakefield Kirkgate Station. Work at bus stations has included a number of
heaith and safety improvements including an innovative scheme to install cameras at Leeds Bus Station to enabie
bus drivers to clearly see behind their vehicie as they reverse.

Following a successful public inguiry major scheme funding has been granted to the new Leeds Station Southern
Entrance and construction is now underway, The NGT team has continued to develop the case for a trolleybus
system in Leeds and has submitted a Transport and Works Act Order application. The public inquiry into this is
scheduled to start in late April.

The Leeds City Region 'City Deal’ which was concluded in July 2012 sets out aspirations for the region. Central to
this is the creation of a £1.6bn West Yorkshire and York Transport Fund. Metro has taken a leading role in
developing the prioritised list of schemes that could be provided through such a Fund and which support the criteria
of increasing employment and productivity in West Yorkshire as well as increasing access to jobs. Initial funding
has been agreed through the levy process and further work is underway to agree longer term resources and
funding. The 'early win' schemes are being deveioped using this initial funding to ensure that there are sufficient
schemes ready to progress when the full funding is secured.

The City Deal also committed to creating a Combined Authority for West Yorkshire. The West Yorkshire Combined
Autherity (WYCA) came into being on 1 April 2014 by virtue of the West Yorkshire Combined Authority Order
864/2014 (the 2014 Order). Atthe same time, the WYITA and WYPTE were dissoived. All of the functions, assets,
liabilities and powers of the WYI|TA and WYPTE were transferred to the WYCA under the provisions of the 2014
Order. The WYCA is now the Local Transport Authority for West Yorkshire and also has power to exercise
Economic Development and Regeneration functions in conjunction with the district Councils of West Yorkshire.
WYCA also includes as members the leader of the City of York Council and the Chair of the Leeds City Region
Loca! Enterprise Partnership. WYCA has established a Transport Commitiee, through which the intention is to
conduct the majority of Local Transport Authority functions, and an Investment Committee which will provide
strategic guidance in relation to the investment in and funding of transport and economic development schemes.
Membership of WYCA committees is drawn from all district councils within West Yorkshire, together with City of
York Council,

The accounts

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting UK
2013/14 which is based on approved International Financiai Reporting Standards ("IFRS") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board. The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accerdance with applicable accounting standards. The accounts consist of the following:-

The Statement of Accounting Policies which explain the basis for the recognition, measurement and disclosure
of transactions and other events in the accounts. This includes the basis of charges to revenue and the calculation
of balance sheet tems.

‘The Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement which shows the net cost for the current year of all the
services for which the Authority is responsible and demonsirates how that cost has been financed.

3
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Foreword to the Annual Accounts 2013/14 {continued)

The Movement in Reserves Statement reconciles the outturn on the income and expenditure account to the
balance on the General Fund that is established by complying with the relevant statutory provisions. It facilitates
a full presentation of the financial performance of the Authority for the year.

The Balance Sheet shows the Authority's assets and iiabilities.

The Cash Flow Statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with other
parties for revenue and capital purposes.

The Group Accounts show the Authority's accounts combined with those of the West Yorkshire Passenger
Transport Executive,

The Annual Governance Statement is not pant of the Statement of Accounts but is required to be provided with
them. lt provides information regarding the system of internal control during the financial year and covers the
effectiveness of this for the group.

Foliowing the IFRS Based Code requirements means that the Authority has a negative batance sheet. This arises
as a result of the legistative structure of the Authority and the Executive where all assets financed through loans by
the Authority are held in the Executive’'s balance sheet or have been passed (under privatisation legislation} to the
rail companies. All the loan charges concerned have been inciuded within the associated District Council's revenue
support grant calculations thus future funding is expected to be assured. In a similar manner the requirements of
I1AS19 Accounting for Pension Costs, requires both the Authority and Executive to show in their accounts any
deficit which would arise on their proportion of the West Yorkshire Pension Fund if that Fund were to be wound up.
Whilst this is in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 it is offsetby a
negative Pensions Reserve. The resuit is a further negative impact on the attached accounts. However, the impact
of the deficit is long term and action is being taken {o address it in accordance with the Actuary's projections.

Review of Revenue Expenditure for the Group

2013114 2013/14
Approved Budget Actual
£m £m
Funding

Government grants 64.2 64.2
District Council Levies - net 96.2 96.2
Ticket Sales 30.9 306
Income generation 8.8 9.5
Transfer from reserves (1.4) (2.0)
198.7 198.5

Revenue Expenditure
Concessionary Travel 523 52.4
Subsidised Bus Services 17.4 17.5
Special Needs Transport 1.7 1.7
Passenger Services support 14.9 14.9
Prepaid tickets 309 30.6
Local Rail Services 64.4 64.4
Financing costs (net) 7.4 7.3
Support costs 9.7 N
198.7 198.5

The presentation above refiects the agreed format in which the budget is approved by the Authority and provides a
more meaningful analysis of expenditure for the users of the accounts as the Group accounts present the majority
of the expenditure in one line 'Highways and Transport Services.” The segmental reporting note provides further
analysis which is compatible with the presentation here. The transfer to reserves figure is the same irrespective of
the presentation adopted.

4
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Foreword to the Annual Accounts 2013/14 {continued)

Revenue funding

in 2013/14 grant income was received from Central Government to cover franchised rail costs. Grants formerly
received directly from central Government towards the costs of the English National Concessions Scheme and
rural bus services are now paid to the District councils as part of the revenue support grant. The remainder of the
Authority’s expenditure was met by a Levy on the five constituent District Councils {Bradford, Calderdale,
Kirklees, Leeds and Wakefield).

In 2006/07 the government introduced free loca!l bus travel for senior citizens and disabled passengers and
funded this through increases to the Revenue Support Grant provided to the constituent District Councils.
There was an uneven distribution between Districts and the Levy was issued to adjust for this with any excess
being returned to the Districts. This agreement has subsequently been continued and the Levy shown in the
accounts for both 201314 and 2012/13 is the net amount.

Overall the net Levy available for normal transport purposes has stayed the same as 2012/13 and 2011/12.
The levy was actually increased by 1.55% with the full value of the increase being set aside for the West
Yorkshire plus Transport Fund (WY+TF). This is in addition to the amounts set aside in the last two years for
this purpose, demonstrating the local commitment to establishing the WY+TF.

Revenue expenditure

The continuing levy freeze for normal transport purposes has only been possible as a result of the approach taken
by the Authority to ongoing cost reductions. The approach agreed in 2012 to reduce the costs of tendered bus
services has been successful, along with the changes fo the reimbursement of discretionary concessionary fares.
As well as these other efficiency savings have continued to be pursued.

The Authority will continue to face challenging financial constraints over the coming years as local government
funding is severely reduced. Significant amounts have been taken out of the concessions and tendered services
budgets through a managed process which has seen much of the cost picked up by the operators but further
opportunities for savings on this scale are not achievable. Efficiency savings continue fo be pursued but as
concessionary reimbursement becomes an ever increasing proportion of the budget it is difficult to make the
required savings. Another set of three year agreements with bus operators on concessicnary reimbursement has
been put in place from 1 Aprit 2014 and whiist this will help to manage costs in the short term there will continue to
be pressure on this budget. Plans to introduce bus quality contracts or partnerships and rail devolution continue
to be progressed and these are likely to introduce further budgetary pressures.

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure in the year was £57.661m, for which a grant of £49.784m was made by the Authority to
the Executive. The full West Yorkshire LTP capital allocation and highways maintenance grant continue to be
received by the Authority and funding is then allocated, through the Executive, to the five Districts. The Auihority
received an LTP integrated Transport Block grant of £19.318m in 2013/14 and a capital grant through the Better
Bus Area Fund of £0.509m. Some funding was carried forward from 2011/12, reflecting delays in implementing
major schemes, and some £13m will be carried forward to 2013/14 under similar circumstances. The Highways
Maintenance grant of £25.511m in 2013/14 was paid to the Authority in the same way as the LTP3 funding.

Capital schemes in the year include a number of highways works, investment in shelter replacements, new Metro

website, contributions to rail schemes and carparks and further investment in smartcard technology, as well as
preparatory work on the NGT trolleybus scheme, rail stations and Leeds Station Southern Entrance.
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Foreword to the Annual Accounts 2013/14 {continued)

Treasury management

The Authority has continued to follow its approved treasury management policy and fuli details are set out in the

accounts. The Authority's long term borrowing at the end of the year is £77.5m, a £1m reduction on the previous

year due to the repayment of a £1m loan faliing due within one year. During the year the difficult financial situation

has meant there have been no opportunities to undertake any refinancing of loans. The Autherity's borrowing

requirement is reducing over coming years, reflecting the increase in cash grants rather than borrowing approvais

for capital expenditure, and thus no further loans have been required. This will be reviewed as the West Yorkshire
+ plus Transport Fund and other activities of the West Yorkshire Combined Authority are further developed.

Further information

The Authority and/or Executive's Accounts can also be supplied in large print, Braille or audiotape. Anycne
wanting these options should contact the WYCA on 0113 251 7227,

Further information on the Authority and the Executive is also available on the following web sites:

WYCA: www.westyorks-ca.gov.uk
ITA: www.wyita.gov.uk
PTE: www wymetro.com

Address; Wellington House, 40/50 Wellinaton Street, Leeds LS1 2DE

Telephone for general enquiries : 0113 251 7272
Metroline for travel enquiries efc : 0113 245 7676
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE AUTHORITY AND GROUP ACCOUNTS

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Executive's and Authority's {Group)
{ransactions for the 2013/14 financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March
2014. The Authority and Group is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts
by the Accounts and Audit {(England) Regutations 2311, which require an annual
Statement of Accounts 1o be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices.
These practices primarify comprise the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Locat
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14 and the Service Reporting Code of
Practice 2013/14, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.

The statements are prepared on a going concern basis with the accounts being prepared
on the assumption that the functions of the Executive and Authority wili continue in
operationai existence for the foreseeabie future.

Accruails of income and expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments
are made or received. In particular:

+ Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Authaority.

+ Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that
econamic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Authority,

+ Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried
as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

+ Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than
when payments are made.

+ Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate
for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or
determined by the contract.

»  Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management
to make certain assumptions, estimates and judgements that may affect the reported
amounts of asseis, liabilities, income and expenses. These are based on historical
experience and any other factors, including expectations of future events, that are
considered appropriate, and these are continually reviewed. Subsequent actual resuits
may however differ from these estimates and judgements. Areas where assumptions,
estimates and judgementis may give rise o adjustments to the carrying values of
assets and liabilities in the financial year are as follows:

« Property revaluation (Group note 10): the Authority carries its non- infrastructure land
and buildings at fair value. Periodically, external surveyors are used, and the last full
independent survey was carried out as at 31 March 2011 with an inferim desktop
review carried out at 31 March 2014. Between independent surveys, reviews are
carried out by internal but qualified staff. Such valuations and any attached estimates
are subject to some judgement.

+ Leases (Group note 24b) : The Group has classified leases as either finance or
operating leases based on the extent to which the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership lie with the lessee or lessor. The Executive has classified certain contracts
as operating leases although the legal form of the arrangement is not a lease.

» Retirement benefit obiigations {Group nete B) : the cost of defined benefit pension
plans is determined using an independent actuarial valuation, involving the use of
assumptions ahout discount rates, returns on assets, future salary increases, mortality
rates, inflation and future pension increases. Such assumptions are reviewed at each
peried end, and determined jointly between the pension fund management and the
actuaries.

REVENUE EXPENDITURE FINANCED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE

Expenditure incurred by the Executive that may be capitalised under statutory
provisions but does not resuit in the creation of a non-current asset (ie rait
infra-structure) is charged to the Comprehensive income and Expenditure
account. The Executive meets this expenditure from existing capitat resources
with deferred capital grants reversed against the expenditure charged to
revenue so there is no impact on the revenue grant requirement.
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PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

infrastructure Assets and Plant and Equipment are stated at depreciated historical

cost, net of accumulated impairment losses. Non-Infrastructure Land and buildings are
measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and impairment losses
recognised after the date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed at intervals of no
mare than five years to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materiaily from its carrying amount. A revaluation of the Executive's Non-infrastructure
Land and Buildings and the Authority's office building (Weliington House} was carried out
by an MRICS qualified valuer of Lambert Smith Hampton, a firm of external Chartered
Surveyars. The revaluation was carried out as at 31 March 2011 on an Existing Use Value
{EUV) and Depreciated Repiacement Cost (DRC) in accordance with 1AS 186 with an
interim desktop valuation undertaken on non-infrastructure assets at 31 March 2014. . A
revaluation of the Executive's on-street furniture was carried out as at 31 March 2008,
The Authority have considered the impairment of fixed assets in accordance with 1AS 36
and after taking into account factors since external surveyors reviewed the property
portfalio can identify no circumstances or events that would affect the carrying vaiues of
the assets.

- Infrastructure Assets and Piant and Equipment is recorded at original cost less
accumuiated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professionai fees and, for assets constructed by the Group, any related waorks
to the extent that these are directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of the asset. The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement. Subsequent
costs are included in the carrying value of an asset when it is probable that
additional future economic benefits will flow ta the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and renewals are charged to
the income statement as incurred.

- Depreciation or amortisation is provided so as to write off, on a straight-iine
basis, the cost of property, plant and equipment and intangible fixed assets
including those held under finance leases. These charges are commenced
from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread
over their estimated useful economic lives. The estimated useful lives of assels
are reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. Accelerated
depreciation or amortisation is provided where an asset is expected {o
became obsclete before the end of its normai useful life or if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that an impairment loss needs to be
recognised, as discussed below. No further charges are provided in respect
of assets that are fully written down but are still in use. The estimated usefui
lives for the main categories of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets are:

Freehold and Long Leasehold Buildings Between 5 and 50 years
On-street Furniture and Infrastructure 20 years

Rail Units Leased 10 years

Vehicles Between 4 and 16 years

Plant and Equipment Between 5 and 10 years

Office Furniture and Equipment Between 4 and 10 years

- Freehold land, either at cast or valuation, is not depreciated.
Management regularly considers whether there are any indications of
impairment to carrying values of property, plant and equipment. impairment
reviews are based on risk adjusted discounied cash flow projections.
Significant judgement is applied to the assumptions underlying these
projections which include esiimated discount rates, growth rates, future
selling prices and direct costs. Changes to these assumptions could have a
material impact on the financial position of the Group and on the resuit
for the year.

9
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b} Progress payments for capital assets

Progress payments for capital assets or schemes not yet completed are
held in Work in Progress. The assets are transferred to the appropriate
heading and are subject to depreciation when they become available for
use. The Group writes out directly attributabie costs on capital schemes
where no tangible asset exists to reflect a frue and fair view of the
Group's asset base.

c) Discontinued Operations and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

Discontinued operations and Non-current assets held for sale are measured
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Discontinued
operations and current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This is the case, when the asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such assets and the sale is considered to be highly
probable. A sale is considered to be highly probabie if the appropriate level
of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset and an active
programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated.

d) Donated Assets

Donated assets are assets that have been transferred to the Group at nil
value or acquired at less than fair value. Donated assets are initially
recognised at fair value at the date of acquisition. After inifial recognition the
donated assets will be revalued and depreciated in accordance with the
Group's revaluation and depreciation policy. A Donated Assets account
recognises the benefit received from these assets where conditions apply to
the assets use.

RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE

Expenditure now incurred by the Group on any rail infrastructure projects is not
capitalised. The Group has no ownership/legal rights in respect of the infrastructure and
as a consequence the costs are charged directly to revenue.

CHARGES TO REVENUE

For the Group depreciation has been shown as part of the service expenditure. No
charge has been made for impairment which is not considered to have occurred in the
two years concerned. Such depreciation or impairment is then required by the Code to be
credited in the Movement in Reserves Statement on the General Fund Balance to avoid it
being a net charge to the accounts. Amounts set aside from revenue for the repayment of
external loans are also shown separately through the Movement in Reserves Statement
on the General Fund Balance.

CAPITAL GRANTS

Grants to fund capital expenditure from government and other bedies are credited {o the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) where the grant conditions
have been met. In order to recognise that the capital grants are provided to finance
capital expenditure the grants are subsequently transferred from the CIES to the Capitat
Adjustment Account. If expenditure has not been incurred at the halance sheet date the
grant is transferred to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account.

The Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement will recognise capital grants to
the extent that they offset depreciation on asseifs owned/leased or capital expenditure
charged directly to revenue (see note 5 above).

Details of capital grants receivable and released are set out in Note 2 to the Group
Accounts.

10
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INVESTMENTS

Investments are shown on the Balance Sheet at cost less provision, where appropriate,
for loss in value. Investment income is credited fo the revenue account when it falls due.

RESERVES

The General Fund Balance is a revenue reserve and transfers to and from the reserve
are recognised through the Movement in Reserves Statement. Expenditure is charged
to revenue and not directly to the reserve. Other reserves (capital adjustment, financial
instruments adjustment, revaluation and pension reserves) are not available for revenue
purposes and can only be used for specific statutory purposes.

PENSION COSTS

The requirements of IAS 19 "Retirement Benefits” have been fully adopted in the
financial statements of the Authority and Executive. Detailed disclosures can be found
in note 6 to the Group Accounts.

The Group is an employing authority within the West Yorkshire Pension Fund which is
a funded pension scheme. Most employees participate in this scheme which provides
defined benefits payable to members on and after their retirement. Contributions made
to the fund for both current and past services are charged to the revenue account as
they are paid. Contribution levels are determined by the Fund. The Fund is a
statutorily established pension fund and the benefits are paid under the provisions of
the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997.

The Executive has a continuing responsibility for any payments to the Fund in respect
of service up to 25 October 1986 for all staff employed by the Executive up to that date.
This responsibility includes ali staff who were fransferred to Yorkshire Rider Limited as
a consequence of the Transport Act 1985. For service from 26 October 1986 onwards
the Executive is only responsible for payments to the Fund in respec{ of ifs own directly
employed staff. The annual cost of this responsibility is charged to the revenue
account under Corporate and Democratic Core.

The liabilities of the pension fund attributable to the iTA are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employees turncver rates,
etc, and projections of projected earnings for current employees.

The assets of the pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance
Sheet at their fair value:

+ Quoted securities at current bid price

+ Unquoted securities based on professionai estimate

+ Unitised securities at current bid price

¢ Property at market value

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed intc seven components:

Current service costs - the increase in liabiiities as a result of years of service earned
this year - aliocated in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement to the
services for which the employee worked;

Past service cost - the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the Non-Distributed Costs;

11
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10.

11.

interest expense on the defined benefit obligation - the interest on the present value
of liabilities and interest on the net changes in those liabilities during the year calculated
using the discount rate at the start of the period debited to the Pensions interest
expense/income on the net liabifity in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement ;

Interest income on assets - the interest income applied o the asset and net changes
in the asset during the year - credited fo the Pensions interest expense/income on the
net liability in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ;

Gains or losses on settiements and curtailments - the result of actions to relieve the
Authority of liabilities or events that reduce the expecied future service or accrual of
benefits of empioyees - debited or credited fo the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement as part of the Non-
Distributed Costs;

Actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liabitity that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions - debited to the Pensions
Reserve; and

Contributions paid to the pension fund - cash paid as employer's contributions to the
pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to the retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund
balance to be charged with the amount payable to the Autherity to the pension fund or
directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there
are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and -
credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable that are unpaid at the
year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures
the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement
benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by empioyees.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to setlle the obligation. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. A provision for restructuring is recognised
when management has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the
restructuring has either commenced or has been announced publicly. In accordance with
the Group's environmental policy and applicabie lega!l requirements, a provision for site
restoration in respect of contaminated land is recognised when the land is contaminated.
Provisions for environmental issues are judgemental by their nature and more difficult {o
estimate when they relate fo sites no longer directly controlled by the Group. The Group
has taken a consistent approach to estimating environmental provisions.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

The Executive presents certain items separately as ‘exceptional’. These are items,
which in management's judgement, need to be disclosed by virtue of their size and
incidence in order for the user to obtain a proper understanding of the financial
information. The defermination of which items are separately disclosed as exceptional
items requires a significant degree of judgement.

12
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12.

13.

14,

15.

TAXATION
Corporation Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years. The current tax expense represents the
sum of the corporation tax currently payable by the Executive, the Authority is not
liable to corporation fax. The tax currently payable is based on interest received for the
year.

Value Added Tax (VAT)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT except:

- Irrecoverable VAT on the purchase of assets or services is recognised as
an expense in the income statement.

- Receivables and payabies that are stated with the amount of VAT
included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority is
inciuded as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

DEBTORS

Debtors are adjusted for doubtful debts which are provided for with known
uncollectabie debts being written off.

LEASED ASSETS

Assets acquired under finance leases, where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets have passed fo the Group, are capitalised in the balance sheet
and depreciated over their useful lives. The corresponding lease commitment is shown
as a liability. Lease payments are analysed between capital and interest. The interest
element is charged to the income statement over the period of the lease and is
calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the lease lability.

Rentals payable under operating leases (where the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership remain with the lessor}, are charged to the income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease term. When the lease becomes onerous full provision is made
of the expected discounted future cost of the lease.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets are classified at initial recognition as loans, cash and cash equivalents
{short term deposits) or receivables in accordance with 1AS 39, and recognised at cost.
The Authority has not designated any financial assets as at fair value through profit or
loss. The Authority's financial assets inciude cash, short-term despoits, trade and other
recejvables. Financial assets are derecognised when the appropriate cash flows have
been received, or when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.
Subsequent measurement depends on their classification as follows:-
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16.

Cash and cash equivalents: cash and short term despoits in the Balance Sheet
comprise of cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an initial maturity of
90 days or less. For the purpose of the consolidated cash fiow statement, cash and
cash equivalenis are as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Loans and deposits: Consist of non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Income
and Expnediture Statement when the assets are amortised, derecognised or impaired.

Trade and other receivables: recognised and carried at invoice ar contract vaiue less an
allowance for any amounts which may not be coilectable. Shouid an amount become
uncollectable, it is written off to the income statement in the period in which it is
recognised.

Impairment of financial assefs: the Authority assesses af each period end whether there
is any evidence that a financial asset, or group of assets, is impaired. Financial assets
are impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of one or more events that will
negatively impact future expected cash flows, and the impact can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence may be that a debtor is experiencing financial difficulty to the extent
that cash flows are, or are likely to be, negatively impacted. | such objective evidence
exists, then the financial asset is impaired to the extent of the present vaiue of
estimated cash flow shortfall. The amount of the allowance for impairment is recorded
separately to the asset, and written off against income.

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as loans and borrowings in
accordance with IAS 39, and recognised at cost. The Authority has not designated any
financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. The Authority's financial
liabilities include short term creditors, loans and other payables, and bank overdraft.
Financiai liabilities are derecognised when the appropriate cash fiow obligations have
been discharged, expired or otherwise cancelled.

Subsequent measurement depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings: non-derivative financiai fiabilities with fixed or determinable
payments not quoted in an active market. Such interest-bearing liabilities are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. (Gains and losses are
recognised in the income and Expenditure Statement when the liabiliities are amortised,
derecognised or impaired.

Trade and other payables: recognised and carried at invoice or contract value. Should
an amount become non-payable, it is written back to the Statement of Income and
Expenditure in the period in which it is recognised.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the Balance
sheet, if and only if there is an enforceable legal right to offset, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis in order to reaiise the assets and discharge the labilities
simultaneously.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

All foreign currency income and expenses are translated at the rate ruling on the day of
the transaction with the resuitant profit or loss recognised immediately in the revenue
account. All foreign currency assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are transiated at
the balance sheet date.
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17.

18.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Contingent Liabiiities {Group note 25): The Group has a contingent liabiiity at the
balance sheet date. The Authority/Executive's legal advisors have assessed the
liability but due to the uncertainty it is not practical {o disclose the timing, financial
effect or amount.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Statement of Accounts are authorised for issue by the Chief Financial Officer.
Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or
notes. Where events taking place hefore this date provided information about
conditions existing at 31 March 2014, the figures in the financial statements and
notes have been adjusted in all material respecis to reflect the impact of the
information {(adjusting events). Events indicative of conditions that arose after the

reporiing period are not adjusted (non-adjusting evenis).

15

74



STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUTHORITY AND
GROUP
1. The Authority's Responsibilities

The Authority is required:

- to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. in this
Authority, that officer was the Director, Resources who is designated as Chief Financial
Officer;

- to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets,

- to approve the Statement of Accounts.

2. The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority's Statement of
Accounts which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Locat Authority Accounting in
Great Britain ('the Code of Practice'), is required to present a frue and fair view of the financial
position of the Authority at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended
31 March 2014,

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, | have selected suitable accounting policies and then

applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent and
complied with the Code of Practice.

| have also kept proper accounting records which were up to date and taken reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

3. Certification of the Accounts

{ certify that the Statement of Accounts present a true and fair view of the financiat position of the
West Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority at 31 March 2014 and its income and expenditure
for the year ended 31 March 2014,

A Taylor
Chief Financial Officer

4. Approval of the Accounts

| certify that the Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue and approved by a resolution of the
West Yorkshire Combined Authority meeting on 11 September 2014 in accordance with the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011. There are no material events after the balance sheet date
that require reflecting in the Statemeni of Accounts. ' '

Chairman of the Authority

18 September 2014
16
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- Annual Governance Statement

1.

2,

3.

Scope of Responsibility

The Authority is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with
the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeqguarded and properly accounted
for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively, The Authority aiso has a duty under the
Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the
way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibiiity, the Authority is also responsible for putting in place
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of the
Authority’s functions including arrangements for the management of risk. This is in
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 'ensuring that the financial
management is adequate and effective and that the body has a sound system of internat
controt which facilitiates the effective exercise of that body's functions and which includes
arrangements for the management of risk.'

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culiure and values,
by which the Authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to
and engages with the community. It enabies the Authority to monitor the achievement of
strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of
appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonabie level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure ta achieve policies,
aims and obiectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks ta the achievement of the Authority's policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and their impact shouid they
be realised, and o manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at the Authority and the Group throughout the
year ended 31 March 2014 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

The governance framework

There are a number of key elements of the systems and processes thai comprise the
Authority's governance arrangemenis. These are set out below along with the key elements
refating to the Executive as it forms part of the Group accounts in these financial statements.
They are also encapsulated in the Code of Corporate Governance which has been approved by
the Audit and Governance Commiitee and which is available on the Authority’s website. A
Code of Corporate Governance for the Passenger Transport Executive has been approved by
its Executive Board.

a) Corporate paolicies and objectives are set and communicated by the Authority. These form a
key role in determining the 15 year strategy of the Local Transport Plan and what it shouid
delfiver. LTP3 clearly articulates a vision for transport and sets out three key objectives and
identifies four themes for delivery. The Authority's policies were revised two years ago to
reflect the changes arising from the Local Transport Act. They focus on providing safe,
integrated, efficient and accessible transport facilities and services to meet the current and
future fransport needs of people who live, work or do business in West Yorkshire. The
implementation of LTP3 is reviewed through the MetroPian monitoring system Covalent and by
officer and Member Groups. The guality of the services delivered is reflected in MetroPlan
maonitoring along with other external scrutiny and feedback. The LTP and the three year
corporate ptan demaonstraie the ‘golden thread’ linking objectives, actions and outcomes.
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3.

The governance framework {continued)

b) A number of levels of scrutiny exist for the activities of the Group. Governance arrangements
within the Authority were revised four years ago and two scrutiny committees review ali areas of
activity and decisions made. External scrutiny is provided by the links to the Association of West
Yorkshire Autherities, the Local Transport Panel, Local Strategic Partnerships and the City
Region Leaders' Board. These provide a critical examination of all policies and objectives.
Scrutiny committees within the Districts will also often chalienge the work being undertaken by the
Authority in such areas as accessibility and local bus services. The Passenger Consultative
Committees in the Districts give a level of locai involvement and altow the public the opporfunity
to scrutinise any new policy initiatives. The Authority has continued the appointment of two non-
Executive Directors to the PTE Executive Board to ensure a further level of chalienge and
scrutiny is provided.

¢) Roles are defined and documented through job descriptions and competency based
employee specifications. Appointments have been made to ali the posts required by statute,
including s151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer. Staff behaviours are guided by Metro's values
and its Code of Conduct and a similar Code exists for Members; both employees and Members
are required to maintain a register of interests. New arrangements are being put in place to
reflect the changes to the standards regime brought about by the Localism Act. The Authority
conforms to the requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer
in Local Government (2010). For the Executive the Chief Financial Cfficer is the Director
Resources who is a key member of the management team and is responsible for the proper
administration of the Executive's financial arrangements through a suitably qualified and
resourced Finance function.

d) The Executive's Internal Audit team also provide the internal audit service {o the Authority.
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the purpose, authority and responsibility
of the internal audit activity to be defined in an internai audit charter,

consistent with the definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the

Standards. The Internatl Audit Charter establishes internal audit's position within the
organisation, including the nature of the Chief Audit Executive's functional reporting
relationship with the Board; authorises access to records, personnel and physical

properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and defines the scope of

internal audit activities.

e) Compliance with established procedures, laws and regulations is ensured by a system that

-requires all decisions made by the PTE Executive Board to set out all legai and financial

implications. Reports to the Authority are subiect to appropriate scrutiny before they are
submitted. Procedures and policies are in place to ensure compliance with the Freedom of
infarmation Act, Data Protection Act and Health and Safety requirements. A whistleblowing
policy and guidance notes are available on the internet.

f} Risk management is embedded in the activities of the Group with regular reviews of the risk
registers and exception reporting where required. Covaleni, Metrd's performance management
system, has been further developed o enable it to contain all the risk registers and provide
reports based on a traffic light system, highlighting 'red’ risks that may require action. Any
actions identified can then be mapped to MetroPlan targets in Covalent and monitored
appropriately.

g) Communication with stakeholders through the Passenger Consultative Committees,
District Liaison Committees and Operator Groups take place. Consultation events have
taken place during the year on the LTP, major schemes and the bus area network reviews
which have successfully sought to reduce costs but retain accessibility for bus users.
Consultation has also taken place on the proposals to create a Combined Authority for West
Yorkshire,

h) A system of Standing Orders and Financial Regulations protect the organisations. These
are reviewed annuailly. Procedural manuals and notes underpin these and ensure the
reporting of financial fransactions is properly managed.
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i} External reviews carried out by auditors and other agencies to achieve Cusiomer Service
Excellence, |IP and other accreditations with any recommendations identified creating a
workplan for future improvements.

1) From 2011/12 the Authority has had sole responsibility for LTP3. A system of
governance has been agreed to manage the delivery and financial management of LTP3
with the District partners. This includes officer and Member groups which can report as
required to the PTE Executive Board and to the Authority. These groups include
representation from the District councils, with the Porifolio holders for transport being
invited to attend all meetings of the Authority's Executive Board.

k) Metro tickets are sold through Post Offices in West Yorkshire and through rail ticket
offices. The PTE has put in place arrangements whereby enhanced assurance statements
are sought from the Post Office and Northern Rall stating that their systems have operated
adequately with no material errors or weaknesses.

4, Review of Effectiveness

The Authority has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control. This review is informed by the work of the Infernal Audit section and
that of management within the Executive and the Authority who have responsibility for the
deveiopment and maintenance of the internal control environment, and also by comments made
by Exiernal Auditors.

The Authority has in place a system based on a framework of standing orders, financial
regulations and administrative controls including codes of conduct and administrative policies
and procedures. All administrative controls and financia! instructions are reviewed on a regular
basis by the Authority's management and internal Audit. Standing orders and financial
regulations are also re-approved annually by the Authority. In terms of financial accounting the
Authority utilises the core financial system of the Executive which is reviewed annually by
Internal and External Audit. During the last year the Chief Financial Officer has provided to the
Audit and Governance Committee a regular confirmation that key controls have been operating
in the period. The Executive has in place similar systems and procedures which are subject to
scrutiny. The Assistant Director Finance reports monthly to the Audit Committee that key
controls have been operating in the peried.

Within the Group budgetary responsibility is devolved to Budget Holders and Controllers who
are responsible for monitoring and controliing their assigned budget. Regular budget
perfarmance reparts are prepared by Finance for those charged with governance to ensure
ongoeing budgetary control is achieved.

The Executive’s Internal Audit section is retained as the internal audit section for the Authority.
The work of Internal Audit is informed by an assessment of risk and a strategic audit plan is
devised based on these assessments. This plan and the audit reviews are submitfed to the
Authority’'s Audit and Governance Committee and to the Executive's Audit Committee.
Regular update reports are provided {o these meetings by the Internal Audit Manager,
including progress made on the impiementation of audit recommendations. Within the PTE
Covalent is now used to monitor progress which allows outstanding recommendations to be
considered monthly by the management teams.

The Treasury Management function for the Authority is undertaken by Leeds City Council. Their
internal audit section provide an annuati certification confirming the work they have undertaken
during the year and their conciusions reached.
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4. Review of Effectiveness {continued}

The Executive continues to develop and refine the project management framework ensuring
that Portfolio Board provides greater accountability and improved governance with regard fo
the management and delivery of projects. A six monthly review of the Portfolio Board was
undertaken and improvements to template documents were actioned to place greater
emphasis on the financial information presented to the Porifolio Board to facilitate more
robust monitoring of annual capital expenditure. The exception reporting process has also
been refined with tolerances set to ensure that Project Executives are reporting back to
Portfolio Board where projects are deviating from plan. Internal audit work during the year
has supported this through the inclusion of a number of compliance reviews of projects fo
ensure PRINCE project management principles are being followed.

The Authority and Executive have in place comprehensive risk management arrangements.
Reviews of risk take place at management team level, supported by a comprehensive range
of documents which provide guidance on the identification, assessment and reporting of risk.
The Executive Risk Management Group meets on a pericdic basis to ensure consistency in
the assessment and management of risk and to provide an overview of the process. The
Authority's Risk register is considered quarterly by the Audit and Governance Committee.

These arrangements will be further developed and evolved to meet the needs of the West
Yorkshire Combined Authority.

The Executive and Authority have reviewed the internal audit function and concluded that it is
satisfactory when assessed against the guidelines of the PSIAS.

From the 2014 Spending Review period, it is proposed that the DfT will devolve and
distribute major scheme funding based on population to voluniary local partnerships and
with decisions on this funding being taken by accountable iocal partners. This new local
partnership is to be known as a ‘Local Transport Body' {LTB)}. The iTA has agreed that, for
an interim period to April 2014, the West Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority
administers the functions of the new West Yorkshire and York LTB. This will be provided
until arrangements are in place for the establishment of a Combined Authority. These
interim arrangements mean that the ITA Executive Board will act as a conduit for the on-
going scheme pricritisation process within the West Yorkshire Plus Transport Fund.

5. Significant internal Control Issues

This section considers any significant issues that have arisen during the year. This is by
exception only.

No such significant issues have arisen in the year.
6. Conclusion

Throughout 2013/14 the Authority has continued to demonstrate an ongoing commitment to
best practice and good corporate governance consistent with the principies of the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework in Local Government and this is clearly demonstrated by the
adoption of a Code of Corporate Governance which captures and summarises these principles.

We are also satisfied with the improvements that are continuing under the guidance of the Audit
and Governance Committee.

The West Yorkshire Combined Authority Order 2014 abolishes both the West Yorkshire
Passenger Transport Executive and the West Yorkshire integrated Transport Authority

from 1 April 2014, While the assets and functions of the Executive (and Autherity) transfer
across o the new West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA) the governance
arrangements wili undergo change to reflect the way in which decision making is undertaken
within a local authority and as a result of two organisations heing merged into one.
Appropriate governance arrangements including revised Standing Orders, Financial
Regulations, codes of conduct and decision making arrangements for the new committee

structure were prepared for approval at the inaugural meeting of the West Yorkshire
Combined Authority on 1 April 2014,
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There is further work to be done during 2014/15 to ensure that all governance
arrangements are fully aligned with those elements already in place. This will include for
example ensuring that risk registers are expanded fo include the new areas of activity that
will be introduced during the early years of the WYCA. Any new governance
arrangements will be kept under review by the WYCA and will also be reflected in internal
audit work programmes.

We are satisfied that an effective system of internal control has been in place throughout the
financial year and is ongoing.

Clir Box A Lythgo
Chairman HoPS

18 September 2014
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WEST YORKSHIRE INTEGRATED TRANSPORT AUTHORITY
MOVEMENT iN RESERVES STATEMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2014

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e.
those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and ‘unusable reserves’. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and tosses {for
example the Revaiuation Reserve, where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold); and reserves that hoid timing
differences {for example the Capital Adjustment Account). The net surplus for the year afier tax line shows the economic cost of providing the Authority's
services and the provision of grants to fund the introduction of capital assets, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement.

Necte

At 31st March 2012
Movement in reserves during
2012/13 Restated

Surplus on Provision of Service
Actuarial Gains Losses

Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Adjustments between accounting basis
and funding basis under regulations
MRP ’

Finance cests early setilement discounts
Capital grants applied

Capital grants released

Capital Grants unapplied

Depreciation

Transfer to pension reserve

Revaluation of fixed assets

Total adjustments beetween accounting basis
and funding hasis under regulations’

increase/( decrease} in year before
transfer to ear-marked reserve
Transfer to ear-marked reserve
Increase/{ dacrease) in year
Balance at 3%1st March 2013

Movement in raseryes during
201314

Surplus en Provision of Service
Actuarial Gains Losses

Totat Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Adjustments between accounting hasis
and funding basis under regutations
MRP

Finance costs early sefilement discounts
Capital grants applied

Capital granis released

Capttal Grants unapplied

Depreciation

Transfer to pension reserve

Revaluation of fixed assets

Totat adjustments beetween accounting basis
and funding basis under regulations

Increase/( decrease) in year before
transfer to ear-marked reserve

Transfer to ear-marked reserve
Increase/{ decrease) in year

Balance at 31st March 2014

]

MW AR

LS

R L) RN

Generai  Capital WY Capital Financiat
Fund Grants Rail Transport! Adjustment Pension instruments Total
Balance Unapplied Reserve Fund Account Reserve  Adj Account
£000's £000's £000°s £000's £000°s £000's £000's £0600's
4,462 13,898 2,378 20,839 {92,947) (584) 18810 (93,343)  (72,504)
4,558 - - - - 4,558
- - - - 111 111
4,558 . - - 111 4,669
(3,991} - - 3,997 - -
76 - - - -
{48,152} - - 46,152 - -
48,811 - - (46,811) - -
- {658} - 658 - -
200 - - (200) - -
34 - - - (34) -
(3,022 (658) . 3,700 (34 -
1,536 {658) - 3,790 77 4,669
{2,700} - - - - -
(1,164) [658) - 3,790 77 4,669
3,298 13,340 2,379 (89,157} (507} (67,835)
5781 - - - - 5,781
- - - - L2} 81
5,781 - - - 81} 5,700
(3.831) - - 3,831 - -
76 - - - - -
(45,196) - (805} 48,968 - -
49,784 - - (49,784) - -
- (BT - 817 B -
200 - - (200} - -
32 - - - (32) -
65 {817} (805) 3,632 (32) -
5,846 {811 (8085) 3,632 {113} 5,700
{3.853) - 501 - - -~
1,993 (817) (304) 3,632 {113}
5201 12,523 2,075 {85,525) (620)

*The MIRS for 2012/13 is restated to reflect changes to |AS 19 Pensicn Benefits see note 5
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WEST YORKSHIRE INTEGRATED TRANSPORT AUTHORITY
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

The Comprehensive incame and Expenditure statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") adopted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2013/14
and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011.

2012/13 Restated *

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure income Expenditure
£000’s £000's £000's
185,301 (59,981} 135,320 Highways and Transport Services
718 - 718 Corporate and Democratic Core
196,019 {59,981) 136,038 Cost of Services - continuing operations
3,352 - 3,352 Interest Payable
- - - Effect of early settlement of barrowing
- {225} (225) Inferest and Invesiment income
27 - 27 Pensions interest cost and expecied return on
assets
199,398 {60,206) 139,192
Taxation and Nen-Specific Grant income
- (97,598) (97,598) - District Council Levies
- (45,503) (45,503) - Integrated Transport/Maintenance (Capital)
. (649) (649) - Section 31 (Capitaf)’
199,398  (203,956) {4,558) (Surplus} on Provision of Services
Actuarial gains and losses recognised on
- (111 (111} pension assets and liabililies

(111) Other Comprehensive income and Expenditure

{4,669) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Notes

14,7

11

2013/44
Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000's £000's £000's
203,857 {67,740} 136,117
723 - 723
204,580 {67,740} 136,840
3,330 - 5,330
- (227) (227)
22 - 22
207,932 {67,967} 139,965
- (99,550) (99,550}
- (44,829) {44,829}
- {1,367) (1,367)
207,932 {213,713) {5,781)
81 - 81
- - 81
{5,700}

* The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2012/13 is restated to reflect changes to JAS 18 Pension Benetfits

see note 5.
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WEST YORKSHIRE INTEGRATED TRANSPORT AUTHORITY
BALANCE SHEET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3% MARCH 2014

The Baiance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Authority. The net
assets (assets less Habilities ) are matched by the reserves heid by the Autherity. Reserves are reported in two categories being usable
and unusable. Usable reserves are those reserves that may be utilised to provide services, subject to the requirement to maintain a
prudent level of reserves and any statutery limiations on their use. Unusable reserves are those that the Authority are not abie to use
for the provision of services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses such as the revaluation
reserve and those that support the timing differences in capital investment {the Capital Adjusiment Account).

2013114 201213
Notes £000's £000's
Assets
Non-current assets
Properly, Piant, Equipment 10 5,420 6,620
TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 6,420 8,620
Current Assets
Shert term investment 17 27,500 5,000
Shert term debtors 14 135 1325
Cash and cash equivalents 15 5,259 9,461
32,894 14,586

Total assets 39,314 21,206

Current Liabilities

Shor term borrowing 42 (2,080} (2,089)
Trade and Other Payables 16 {1,083} (2,860)
Grants Received in Advance 16 {20,166} (4,986}
{23,329) {10,034)
Long Term Borrowing 12,17 {77,500} {78,500}
Net Pension fiability 5 (820} {507}
{78,120} {79,007}

Total Liabilities {101,449} {89,041}
NET LIABILITIES (62,135) {67,835}
General Fund Balance 5,291 3,298
Capital Grants Unapplied reserve 3 12,623 13,340
Rail Reserve 18 2,075 2,379
WY Transport Fund Reserve 18 4,085 2,700
Usabhle reserves 23,974 21,717
Capital Adjustment Account 2 (85,525) {89,157)
Financial instruments Adjustment Account 36 112
Pensions Reserve 5 (620) {507}
Unusable reserves (86,109) {89,552)
Total Reserves (62,135) (67,835)

A Taylor Date : 18 September 2014

Chief Financial Officer

WYITA
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WEST YORKSHIRE INTEGRATED TRANSPORT AUTHORITY
CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3% MARCH 2014

Purpose of cashfiow

The cashflow is a financial statement that shows how changes in balance sheet accounts and income affect
cash and cash equivalents, and breaks the analysis down to operating, investing, and financing activities.
Essentially, the cash flow statement is concerned with the flow of cash in and cash out of the business.

201213 201314
£000's £000's
restated*
QOperating Activities

4,558 Surpius on the Provision of Service : 5,781
200 Depreciation 10 200
3,341 (Decrease)/Increase in creditors 13,294
(898) Decreasef{Increase) in debtors (9)

34 Transfer to the Pension Reserve 32
- Proceeds from the sale of property, ptant and equipment, 18 4}

8,047 Net cash generated from operating activities 19,287

Cash flows from investing activities

(5,0C0) Shert term investment 17 (22,500)
- Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 18 1
(5,000) Net cash flows from investing activities (22,499)

Cash flows from financing activities

(1,0C0) Repayment of loans 17 (1,00C)
{1,000) Net cash used from financing activities (1,000)
2,047 Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,202)
7,414 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 9,461
9,461 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 5,259

The surplus on the provision of service inciudes the foliowing items:

2012113 ’ 2013114
£000's £000's
3,352 Interest paid 3,330

(228) Interest received (227)

Note:

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cperational cash balances, cash at bank and short-term bank deposits,
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand also form an integral part of the Authority's cash management
arrangements. i
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS:-

1

Revenue Expenditure

The Authority's revenue expenditure on public transport comprises both direct expenditure undertaken by the
Executive for which the Authority provides a grant and direct expenditure by the Authority itseif:

201314 2012113

£000's £000's

Revenue Grant to Executive to meet Public Transport expenditure 86,752 88,917
Direct Service costs (net} 422 421
Other costs 1,135 1,135
88,309 90,473

Capital Adjustment Account
2013/14 201213

£000's £000's

Opening balance (89,157} (92,947}
Income

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 3,831 3,991

Revaluation Adjustment -

Less depreciation charged to services (200} {200}

3,631 3,791

Expenditure
Revenue expendifure funded from capital under statute (49,784) (46,811}
(49,784) (46,811)

Capital receipts applied/{(unapptied) 817 658
Write down of Capital Grants 48,968 46,152

49 785 45,810
Balance cf (85,525) {89,157)

MRP is 4% of the capital financing requirement as at 1st April 2014 which for the Autherity is £95.77m (£92.77m at 1s{ April
2013).

Capital Grants unapplied 201314 2012/43

£000's £000's
Opening balance 13,340 13,958
Capital receipts {applied)/unapplied in year (817} (658}
Balance C/fwd 12,5623 13,340

Segmental Reporting

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the comprehensive income and expenditure statement
is that specified by the Service Reperting Code of Practice (SeRCOP}. However, decisions about resource allocation
are taken by the Authority on the basis of budget reports. These reporis are prepared on a different basis from the
accounting policies used in the financial statements. in particuiar the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows
{payment of employer's pension contribuiions) rather than current/past service cost of benefits accrued in the year. The
report presented to the Authority is on a consolidaied basis taking into account the operations of the Execuiive.

Presented below is the restatement of Cost of Services and specific and non-specific grant income as reported fo the
Authority's decision makers -
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5.1

5.2

53

Pension Costs

Employees

The Authcrity participates in the West Yerkshire Pension Fund, administered by Bradford Metropolitan District
Councit. This is 2 funded defined benefit scheme, meaning that the Authority and its employees pay contributions
into a fund, calculated at a level intended o balance the pensions {abilities with investment assets.

In 2013/14 contributions payable for the year io West Yorkshire Pension Fund based on the formal actuariat
valuation carried out for 31 March 2010 were £17,084 (2012/13 - £16,946) representing 13% {2012/13 - 13%) of
pensionable pay with an additiona! deficit payment of £2,218 (2012-13 - £2,106). Under the Pension Fund
regulations contribution rates are set to meet the overall liabilities of the Fund. The actuarial valuation carried cut
at 31 March 2013 has determined the employer contributions for the next three years but recognising that the
WYITA will be dissclved and its pension assets and liabilities transfered to the West Yarkshire Combined
Authority at 1 Aprit 2014 the a rate has been determined for the new entity of 13.5%.

Further information can be found in the West Yaorkshire Pension Fung Annual Repont which is available on request
from the Chief Financial Officer, PO Box 67, Britannia House, Hall Ings, Bradford, BD1 1UP.

Capital Cost of Discretionary Increases in Pensicn Payments

The Authority is reguired to disclose the capital cost of discretionary increases in pension payments, which related
to the award of added years on the early retirement of employees. Separate disclosure is required for the in year
discretionary awards and the ongoing costs of previous years discrefionary payments. The Authority paid £3,074
for such payments in 2013/14 (£3,005 in 2012/13).

Pension disclosures required under 1AS 19

The Authority's West Yorkshire Pension Fund Liabilities have been assessed by AON Hewitt Ltd, an independent
firm of actuaries.

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pansions
that will be payable In future years dependent on assumptions about martality rates, salary levels etc. The main
assumnpticns used in their calculations have been:

Financial Assumptions

Funded 3t March 2014 31 March 2013
Duration of fiabilities (years) 18.9 19.2
Inflation - RPI 3.4% 3.4%

- CPl 2.4% 2.5%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.8% 4.4%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment 2.4% 2.5%
Rate used to discount the scheme liabilities 4.3% 4.5%

Unfunded
Duration of Habilities (years) 12 12
Inflation - RPI 3.2% 3.2%

-CPi 22% 2.3%
Rate cf increase for pensions in payment 2.2% 2.3%
Rate used to discount the scheme liabilities 4.2% 4.1%

Mortaiity assumptions
Post retirement mortality (retirement in normal health):-

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Males : CMI 2012 Long term rate of improvement Males : CMI 2009 Long term rate of
of 1.5%p.a. improvemnent of 1.25%
Females : CMi 2012 Long term rate of improvement Females : CMI 2009 Long term rate of
of 1.5%p.a. impravernerit of 1.25%
Life Expectancy
- of a male (female) future pensioner aged 65 in 20yrs time 247 (27.7} Years 23.9(26.2) Years
- of a male {(femaie) current pensioner aged 65 22.5 (25.4) Years 22,1 (24.3) Years
28
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5.3 Pension disciosures required under iAS 19 (continued)

As part of the 2013 actuarial valuation the mortality experience was analysed across the fund over a 3 year period and
assumptions have been amended regarding life expectancy. The mortality allowance for future improvements uses the
Continuous Mortality Investigaticn (CM!) Mortality Projections modet! with the model updated annually to refiect the iatest
emerging experience. This means there will continue to be regular changes to the assumptions for future improvements in
mortality rates as new data is taken into account.

Assels in the West Yorkshire Pension Fund are valued af fair value, principally market value for investments, and copsist of the

following categories, by propertion of the olal assets held by the Fund:

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

Asset Asset Asset
Quoted Ungquoted Total £000’s Split E£000's
% % % %
Equities 70.1 5.2 75.3 915 72.5 928
Government Bonds 10.5 0.0 10.5 128 11.9 152
Other Bonds 5.4 0.0 5.4 66 57 73
Property 3.2 0.0 32 39 3.1 40
Cash/Liguidity 3.1 0.0 31 38 36 46
Other 0.0 2.5 2.5 30 32 41
Total 82.3 7.7 100.0 1,216 100.0 1,280
Reconciliation of unfunded/funded status fo Balance Sheet
31/03/2014  31/03/2014 31/03/2013 31/03/2013
£000's £000's £000's £000's
Unfunded Funded Unfunded Funded
Fair Value of assels - 1,216 - 1,280
Present value of funded defined benefit
obifgation 52 1,784 52 1,735
Funded status - {568) (455}
Impact of minimum funding reguirement
fasset ceiling - - - -
Asset/(liability) recognised on the balance
sheet (52) (568) (52} {455)
Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities
31/03/2014  31/03/2014 31/03/2013  31/03/2013
£000's £000's £000's £000's
Unfunded Al Benefits Unfunded Al Benefits
1 April 52 1,787 51 1,724
Current service cost - 32 - 26
Interest cost 2 79 2 81
Member Contributions - g - 7
Past service cost - - " -
Actuarial {gains)/loss Financial %)) (15} 2 {5)
Actuarial (gains)/loss Demographic 1 (82) - -
Actuarial (gains)/loss Experience 1 71 - {2)
Curtailments - - - -
Settlements - - - -
Benefits paid {3 (45) {3} {44)
31 March 52 1,836 52 1,787
Reconciliation of fair value of scheme 31/03/2014 31/03/2014 31/03/2013 31/03/2013
assets £000's £000's £000°s £000's
Unfunded Ali Benefits Unfunded Ali Benefits
1 April - 1,280 - 1,140
Interest income on scheme assets - 57 - 54
Actuarial gains/{loss) - {107) - 104
Contributions paid by employer 3 22 3 19
Member Contributions - 9 - 7
Benefits paid (3} {45) {3) {44)
31 March - 1,216 - 1,280
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5.3 Pension disclosures required under IAS 18 {continued)

Actual Return on assets 31/03/2014 31/03/2013

£000's £000's
Interest income on assets &7 54
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on assets (ary 104
Actual refurn on assets {50 158

The amounts recegnised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

] 3103/2044 3110372013
Cost of service £000's £000's
Current Service Cost 32 26
Past Service Cost - -
Curtailments or seftlements - .
Financing Investment income and Expenditure
Interest on net defined benefit liakility 22 27
Total pension cost recognised T 54 T T Ea

The amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Return on plan assets {in excess)/below that 107 {104)
recegnised in net interest
Actuarial gains/losses due to change in Financl assumpt. (15} {5}

Actuarial gains/losses due o change in

Demcgraghic assumpt. {82) -
Actuarial gainsflosses due to liability experience 71 {2)

Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive inc. TS wm(.:ﬁ_ﬁ“
Total amount recognised 135 (58)

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis showing the impact of changing key attuarial assumptions on the present value of the funded defined
penefit obligation as at 31 March 2014 and the projected service cost for the year ending 31 March 2015 is set out below. Only the
assumptions mentioned are aliered all other assumptions remain the same.

Funded LGPS henefits

Adiustment to discount rate +0,1%pa -0.1%pa
Present value of {ctai obligafion £000°s 1,751 1,817
% change in present value of fotal cbligaticn -1.8% 1.8%
Adiustment to rate of increase in salaries +0.1%pa -0.1%pa
Present vaiue of totat obligation £000’s 1,785 1,773
% change in present value of total cbligation 0.6% -0.6%
Adiustment to pension increase rate +0.1%pa -0.1%pa
Present value of total obligation £060's . 1,806 1,762
% change in present value of total obligation 1.2% -1.2%
Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption +1 year -1 year
Present value of fotai obiigation £000's 1,826 1,742
% change in present value of total obligation 2.4% 2.4%
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7

The revised 1AS 19 has come into force for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Adoption of the revised IAS
18 increases the expenses recognised for funded benefits from £0.026M to £0.051M for the comparative year ended 31 March

2013. There is no effect on the Balance Sheet.

Minimum Revenue Provision

The Authority has a statutory cbligation to make adequate provision to meet ils liabiiities in respect of capial expenditure
financed by external borrowing. The method of calculating the provisicn is defined by statute. For 2013/14 the amount is

£3.831m (2012/13 £3.891m).

The provision has been charged to service revenue accounts as a depreciation charge for fixed assels related {o that service.
The batance has been transferred to the General Fund Balance through the Movement in Reserves Statement to ensure that the

charge to the Amount met frem Government Grant and Local Taxation equates to the Minirmum Revenue Provision (MRFP).

Depreciation charged to services
Addttional charge to revenue
Minimum Revenue Provision

Goverhment Grants

2013/14 201213

E000's E000's
200 200
3,631 3,791
3,831 3,991

in accordance with statutory requirements the Authority is required to set out the government grants received during the year and to

speclfy the awarding body.

Special Rail Grant - Department for Transport

Integrated Transport Block/Maintenance - Department for Transport
Section 31 LSTF - Departrnent for Transport {Revenue}

Section 31 BBAF- Department for Transporl {Capital)

Section 31 BBAF- Department for Transpert (Revenue)

Section 31 CCAG- Depariment for Transport (Capilai)

Community Transport Support - Departrent for Transport (Revenue)
Bus Services Operator Grant -Depariment for Transport {Ravenue)

Members® Allowances
The tctal members' allowances paid in the year was £252,700 (2012/13 - £251,705).

Officers' Remuneration

2013114 2012113
E000’s E000's
64,200 57,613
44,829 45,503
472 650
509 649
1,125 464
858 -
159 -
513 -
112,674 104,879

The IFRS Based Cede of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2014 requires the disclosure of the number of officers whose
remuneration in the year was £50,000 or more, grouped in rising bands of £5,000. For the year endad 31 March 2014 cne officer

of the Authority recefved remuneration of £50,000 or more as set out below:-

Band
£50,000-£55,000

201314

Number

1

Compensation

Salary Fees Expenses forioss of
Allowances Bonuses Allowances office
Deputy Cierk 2012/13 48,845 - -
Deputy Clerk 2013/14 50,101 . -
31
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2012113

Number

Pension

Contributions

6,480
6,513

Total

56,325
56,614



10 Property, Plant and Equipment

11

Fixed Assets wholly relate to the Authority's office building in Wellington Street, Leeds which was purchased in 1988. The building
was [ast revalued at 31 March 2011 at a vajue of £7.020m by a MRICS gualified Valuer of Lambert Smith Hampton, a firm cf external
Chartered Surveyors. An independent desktop review of the office building was undertaken by a MRICS qualified Valuer of Lamberl
Smith Hampton at 31 March 2014 which confirmed there was no materia! change to the carrying value.

Other Land & Other Land
Buildings & Buildings

201314 201213

£000's £000's
Valuation at 1 April 6,620 5,820
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Revaluation Adjustment - -
Valuation at 31 March 5,620 6,820
Depreciation charged to 1 April - -
Impairments - -
Depreciation charged in the year 200 200
Revaluaiion Adjustment - -
Accumulated depreciation 200 200
Net bock vajue at 31 March 6,420 6,620

Related Party Transactions

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or
influence the Authority or to be controlled cr influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers o assess the
extent o which the Authority might have been constrained in its ability io operate independently or might have secured the abllity 1o limit
another party's ability to bargain freely with the Authority.

The Authority's transactions with related parties during 2013/14, which are not separately disclosed elsewhere, are set out below:

2013/14 201213
Levying bodies: £000's £000's
Bradford MDC 23,542,172 22,592,439
Calderdale MDC 8,083,692 8,689,955
Kirkiees MDC 18,343,122 17,444,539
Leeds City Council . 33,433,821 34,040,608
Wakefield MDC 15,247 432 14,820,733

99,550,239 97,598,274

The UK Government exers significant influence through legistation and grani funding as disciosed in Note 7.

The Authority requires members o complete a declaration of Related Parly Transactions and this information is used to prepare this
note. Al members have at least two roles under the Local Government Act 1985 in that they are members of ane of the five
constituent levying Metropalitan District Counclls and are appointed onto the integrated Transport Authority. Other than this no
member has declared any such transaction with the Authority.

The Executive can be consirued to be a related party of the West Yorkshire integrated Transport Authority (WYITA) as defined in iAS
24 "Refated party transactions”. WYITA is the ultimate controiling party of the Executive with the ability to direct the Executive's
financial and operating policies.

The WYITA paid revenue grant payments tc the Executive of £86:752m and capital grants of £48.784m. The balance owing by the
Integrated Transport Authority to the Executive at 31 March 2014 is also shown at Note 18.

Officers

Mr K Preston, Clerk to the Authority, is also Director-General of the Passenger Transport Executive (PTE), he tock voiuntary
redundancy on 24th January 2014, His services to the Authority are not recharged to the Authorily by the PTE. Mrs A Taylor Is the
Autherity's 5151 Officer and is employed by the Executive as Director Resources and also their 151 Officer.
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12

13

14

15

16

Loans Qutstanding
201314 201213
£000's £060's
Lender:-
Public Works Loans Board 54,261 55,270
Other Market Loans 25,318 25,319
Short Term Loans - R
79,580 80,585
Maturity:-
Loans repayable within 12 months 2,080 2,089
1-2 years 1,000 1,000
2-5 years 1,500 2,600
5-10 years - -
in more than 10 years 75,000 75,000
79,580 80,589
Capital expenditure and financing 2013/14 2012/13
E000's £000's
Capital investment
Operaticnal assets - -
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 458,754 45,811
49,784 46,811
Sources of finance
Borrowing (credit approvals) - -
Capital receipts - -
Governmenti grants and other contributions 49,784 46,811
Revenue contributicns - -
49,784 46,811
Short Term Debtors
201314 2042113
£000's £000's
Ceniral government bodies g8 51
Bodies external to general government 37 74
135 125
Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing financial instruments. There is no material difference
between the carrying value and the fair value of trade and other receivables.
Cash & Cash Equivaients 2013114 2012113
£000's £000°s
Bank current Accounts 5,259 8,461
5,259 9,461
Cash at bank and short term deposits earn interest at floating rates based on bank deposit rates. There is
no materal difference between the carrying value and fair value of cash and cash equivalents.
Trade and Other Payables 201314 2012113
£000's £000's
Cther local autherities 7 25
Public Corporation - WYPTE 1,036 2,903
Bodies external to general government 40 32
1,083 2,960
Grants Received in Advance
Central govemnment 20,137 4,856
Other local authorities 29 29
Bodies external to general government - -
20,166 4,985

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing financial instruments. There is no material difference between the

carrying value and the fair value cf trade and other payables.

17.1 Financial instruments

Financial %(ébiiitWes, financial assets represented by loans and creditors and short-term debters and cash and cash
equivalents are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value is assessed as the amount at which

the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing fnancial instruments, the short term nature of these

instruments means there is no material difference between the carrying value and fair value.
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31 March 2014 31 March 2013

£000's £000's £000°s £000's
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
Amount Amount
Financial Assets
Current trade debtors 135 135 125 125
Cash and cash equivalents 5,258 5,259 9 461 9,461
Short term investment 27,500 27,569 5,000 5,124
Financial Liabilifies
Short-term credifors 21,248 21,249 7,945 7,945
Floating rate borrowing - due within 1yr - - - -
Fixed Rate borrowing - due within 1 yr 1,008 1,014 1,009 1,016
Floating rate borrowing - due after 1yr . 5,019 4,414 5,062 5,189
Fixed Rate borrowing - due after 1 yr 73,552 73,386 74 518 77,584
79,580 76,814 80,589 83,888

The Authority has considered the balance sheet carrying values le amoertised costs of financial instruments of the Autherity. itis
required tec disclose the fair value and carrying value for those financial instruments whose carrying value is not a reasonable
approximation for fair value. In the Authority's books it is only the loan portfolio and short term investment which fall into this
category.

Hedging instruments

The Authority holds no financial instrumenis that couid be classified as hedging instruments.

Loans and Borrowings

Fair value is determined by calculating the Net Present Value of future cash flows, thus estimating the vaiue of future payments
in today's terms. This is a widely accepted and commonly used valuation technique. The discount rate used should be equal
to the current rate for a similar loan from a comparable lender. This will be the market rate applicable on the date of vaiuation
for a loan with the same outstanding period to maturity.

However, it may be uniikely that the future cash flows of a loan will fall in equal ime pericds from the date of valuation, so
adjustments are made fo each discount factor in order to account for the timing inequality.

The purpose of the fair value disclosure is primarily fo provide a comparison with the carrying value, which includes accrued
interest as at the balance sheet date, therefore we have Included accrued interest in the fair value calculation.

The discount rates used for the evaluation were obtained by WYITA from Capita. Capita is a leading and independent provider
of capital financing, treasury advisory and strategic advisory consulting services fo the public sector.

Assumptions used, which do not have a material affect on the fair value evaluation are: interest is calculated using a 365 day
basis; interest is paid on the maturity date; no adjustment is made to the interast value and date where a relevant date occurs
an a non working day.

Effective 201314 2012143
Current interest rate  Maturity £000's £000's
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Jun 2013 - 500
PWLB - EiP 2.81% Dec 2013 - 500
PWLE - EIP 2.81% Jun 2014 500 -
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Dec 2014 500 -
1,000 1,060

Non- Current
Public Works Loan Board 3.70% Jan 2056 5,000 5,000
Public Works Loan Board 4 .40% Jan 2052 5,000 5,000
Pubiic Works Loan Board 4.40% Jul 2054 8,000 8,000
Public Works Loan Board 4.40% Jun 2053 8,000 8,000
Pubiic Works Loan Board 4.55% Jun 20562 4,000 4,000
Public Works Loan Board 4.55% Apr 2055 6,000 6,000
Pubiic Works Loan Board 4.55% Apr 2056 6,000 5,000
Public Works Loan Board 4.55% Apr 2057 8,000 8,000
PWLEB - EiP 2.81% Jun 2014 - 500
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Dec 2014 B 500
PWLE - EIP 2.81% Jun 2015 500 500
PWLB - EiP 2.81% Dec 2015 ’ 500 500
PWLE - EIP 2.81% Jun 2016 500 500
PWLEB - EIP 2.81% Dec 2016 500 500
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Jun 2017 500 500
Barclays - LOBO's 3.97% May 2065 5,000 5,000
Barclays - LOBO's 3.80% Aug 2085 5,000 5,000
Barclays - LOBO's 3.99% Oct 2066 5,000 5.000
Barclays - LOBO's 4.30% Dec 2076 5,000 5,000
Barclays - LOBO's 4.32% May 2077 5,000 5,000
77,500 78,500
Total 78 500 79,500
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17.2 Management of risks atising from financial instruments

18

There are a nurber of risks associated with financial instruments to which the Authority is necessarily exposed.
Haowever the Authority monitors and seeks to manage these risks in order to minimise the potential for losses to oeour.

Credit risk is the risk that amounts due te the Autherity may not be received. Almaost all of the Authority's loans and
investmenis are made for freasury management purposes, 10 geberate income from available balances. The parameters
within which these investments are made are set out within the approved Treasury Management Policy. The effect of
this policy is to restrict as far as is practicable the Authority's exposure to risk from the failure of a financial institution. it
ensures that deposits are placed only with limited numbers of financial instiutions whose credit rating is independently
assessed as being sufficiently secure. The ferm and maximum deposit is also restricted.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority may nct have sufficient cash available to meet its day to day obligaticns to meet
payments. The Authority has access to borrowings from the Public Works Loans Board and commercial lenders tc meet
long term spending and shorter term cashflow requirements. Again measures are in place to actively manage the loan
portfolio to ensure refinancing, if required, can be done in a way to minimise the risk of exposure to adverse rates.

interest rate risk is the risk that future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because cf changes in market
interest rates. The majorily of the Authorily's long term lending is at fixed interest rates but it also borrows some of its
money in the form of iender option borrower option loans (LOBOs). This mix of lending assists the Authority in faking
advantage of changes to interest rates and it constantly reviews the potential for refinancing debt at more fzvourable rates.

The Authcrity is also affected by fluctuations in shorter term interest rates as this impacts on the interest that can be
earned in the year on deposits. This is carefully monitored.

The Authority Is required to disclose the impact that a hypothetical change in market interest rates during the year would
have had on its recognised gains and |osses, | should be noted that had interest rates been different then in practice
different decisions weuld have been taken in refation o rescheduiing of debt and new borrowing and investment
undertaken. 1t is not possible to guantify the likely impact of such different decisions. The Authority's interest payable and
recéivable would have varied by a net £274k if interest rates varied by 1% in the year.

The Authority is not exposed to any matlerial currency risk.

Net Assets employed

201314 201213
£000's £000's

Total Reserves and Balances {62,135} {67,835}

The Total Reserves balance for the Authority includes a Rail Reserve under Usable Reserves which recognises the
disposal of Rail Rolling stock and Yorkshire 6 funding surpiuses with the reserve tolalling £2.075m at 31 March 2014.
The Authority ear-marked the rai! rolling stock disposal proceeds for rail infrastructure investment and funds were
transferred to the Authority to be held in the Rail Reserve pending investment in identified rail projects. As at 31 March
2014 the Rail Reserve has provided EB0&K of funding for the Leeds Station Southern Entrance scheme.

In addition the Reserves inciude the West Yorkshire Transport Fund Reserve to reflect additioral levy contributions from
the Districts in 2012/13 and 2013/14 to develop strategic transport schemes in West Yorkshire. The reserve has a
balance of £4.065m at 31 March 2014,

49  Audifor's Remuneration

201314 2012113

£000's £000's

Audit Services 21 21
21 21

20 GOING CONCERN

21

The accounts of the Authority have been prepared on a going concern basis. While the West Yorkshire Combined Authority
order 2014 dissolves the Executive at 1st April 2014 it provides that all the assets, Habilities and functicns of the Autharity
continue under the West Yorkshire Combined Authority . This is deemed {o be a transfer of services under combinations of
public sector bedies and therefore the presumption of going concern continues in accordance with the code.

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

The Statement cf Accounts were authorised for issue by the Chief Financiat Officer on 18 September 2014. There have been
no adjustrments to the financia! statements for evenis after the balance sheet date.
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CONSOLIDATED GROUP ACCOUNTS

WEST YORKSHIRE INTEGRATED TRANSPORT AUTHORITY
GROUP MCVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2014

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the year on the different ressrves held by the Group, anatysed into ‘usabie reserves’ (i e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure) and ‘unusabie reserves’. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses {for example the Revaiuation Reserve, where amounts would only
become avaitable to provide services if the assels are sold}); and reserves that hold timing differences {for examote the Cap:tat Adjustment Account/Deferred Capitat grants Account}. The net
surplus on provision of service shows the economic cost of providing the Group’s services and the provision of grants to fund the introduction of capital asseats, more detaits of which are shown in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

General  Capital Wy Capital Deferred Financial Donated
Fund Grants Rail Transport NGT Adjustment Capital Instrumen' Revajuation Pension Total
Note Baiance Unapplied Reserve Fund Reserve Account Grants A/C Adj A/C Reserve Reserve
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000°s £000°s £000's £000's £000's £000's

At 31st March 2012 §742 43,998 2,379 - (44,694) 21,059 188 10,525 (66,841) B68 (57,076)
Movement in reserves during :
2012M3 - -
Surplus on Pravision of Service 3,121 - - - - - - - - 3,121
Actuarial Gainsi(Losses} 6 - - - - - - - - 4,142 4,142
Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure 3121 - - - - - - - 4,142 7,263
Adjustments between accounting ‘
basis and funding basis under regs
MRP (3,991) - - - 3,991 - - - - -
Finance costs early seflilernent discounts 76 - - - - - {78) - - -
Capital grants released 48,803 - - n (49,182} {611} - - - -
Capital grants applied 2 {49,007) - - - 46,152 2.855 - - - -
Capital Grants unapplied 2 - {B58) - - 658 - - - - -
Depraciation 200 - - - {200 - - - - -
Transfer to pension reserve 1,334 - - - - - - - {1,234) -
Revaluation of fixed assets  10ac - - - - - - - - - -
Total adjustments between accounting
basis and funding basis under regs (1,585) (658) - - 1,409 2,244 (76} - {1,334} -
Increasef (decrease) in year before
fransfer to ear-marked reserve 1,536 (658) - - 1,408 2,244 {76} - 2,808 7,263
Transfer to ear-marked reserve (2,700} - - 2,700 2,388 - (2389) - - - -
Increasef{decrease} in year (%,164) (G58) - 2,700 2,389 1,409 {145) {76} - 2,808 7,263
Balance at 3{st March 2013 4578 13,340 2,379 2,700 2,389 {43,285) 20,914 142 10,425 (64,033} 668 | (49,813}
Movement in reserves during
201314
Surplus on Provision of Service 1,232 - - - - - . n - 1,232
Actuarial Gains/{Losses) ] - ~ - - - - - - 1,346 1348
Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure 4,232 - - - - - - - 1,346 2,578
Adjustments between accounting
basis and funding basis under regs
MRP (3,6831) - - - 3,834 - - - - -
Finance costs early setiiement discounts 76 - - - ~ - (78) - - -
Capital granis released 59,690 - - - (51,535} {B.155) - - - -
Capital grants applied 2 (52,727) - (805}  {1,967) 48,968 7.877 - - - -
Capital Grants unapplied 2 - (817} - - 817 - - - - -
Depreciation 200 . - - (200} - - - - -
Transfer to pension reserve 1,206 - - - - - - - {1,208} -
Revaluation of fixed assets - - - - - - . - - -
Total adjustments between accounting
basis and funding basis under regs 4,514 {817} (805  (1,967) 1,881 {278) (78) - {1,206) -
Increase/ (decrease) in year before
Transfer to ear-marked reserve 5,846 {817} (808} (1,967} 1,881 {278) {76} - - 140 2,578
Transfer to ear-marked reserve (3,853) - 501 3,352 - - - - -
Increasel (decrease) in year 1,993 {817) {304} 1,385 1,881 (278) {76} - 140 2,578
Balance at 31st March 204 6,571 42,523 2,075 4,085 {41,404} 20,638 36 10,425  (63,893) A ERYY  {47,235)

201314 2012/13

£000's £000's

RECONCILIATION OF AUTHORITY {SURPLUS) TO GROUP (SURPLUS}
{Surplus} for year on Authority Comprehensive income and Expenditure
Statement {5,781) {4,558}
(Surplus)/Deficit in Group 1 and E attiibutable to Executive 4,545 1,437
{Surplus} for the year in the Group (1,232} {3,121)
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95



WEST YORKSHIRE INTEGRATED TRANSPORT AUTHORITY
GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {"{FRS") adopted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2013/14 and the Accounts and Audit Regufations 2041,

2012/13 Restated

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000's £000's £000's
244,822 (165506) 79,316 Highways and Transport Services
8,248 - 8,248 Corporate and Democratic Core
253,070 {165,506) 87,564 Cost of Services - continuing operations
3,352 - ‘ 3,352 Interest Payable
- - - Effect of early settlement of borrowing
- - -~ Exceptional item
- (227} (227} Interest and investment income
. Pensions interest cost and expected return
2,892 - 2,992 on assets
259,414 {165,733} 93,681
Non-Specific Grant [ncome
- (97,588) (97,598) -District Council Levies
- (45,503) {45,503) - Integrated Transport/Maintenance {Capital}
- (3,504) (3,504) - Section 31 {Capital}
49 803 - 49 803 Capital granis released
309,217 {312,338) {3,121) (Surplus) on Provision of Services
Actuariai gains and [osses recognised on pension
- (4,142) (4,142) assets
- - - Deficit/{Surplus) on Revaluation
0 (4,142} {4,142} Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

{7,263} Total Comprehensive income and Expenditure

Notes
3,7

12

11

10c,e

201314
Gross Gross Net

Expenditure Income Expenditure

£000°'s £000’s £000's
259,382 {182,225} 77,167
8,482 - 8,492
267,884 {482,225) 85,659
3,330 - 3,330
- {230) {230)
2,596 2,596
273,810 (182,455) 91,355
- (89,550) (99,550}
- (44,829) (44,829)
- (7,808) {7,898)
59,680 B 58,680
333,500 (334,732) {1,232)
- (1,346) {1,346)
- {1,346} {1,346}
{2,578)

* The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2012/13 is restated 1o refiect changes to JAS 18 Pension Benefits see note 6
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WEST YORKSHIRE INTEGRATED TRANSPORT AUTHORITY
GROUP BALANGCE SHEET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Group. The net assets {assets less liabilities) are
matched by the reserves heid by the Group. Reserves are reported in two categories being usable and unusable. Unusable reseves are those reserves that may
be utifised to provide services, subject to the requirement to maintain a prudent ieve! of reserves and any statutory limilations on their use. Unusable reserves are
those that the Group is not able to use for the provision of services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses such as the
revaluation reserve and ihose that supporl the timing differences in capital investment {the Capital Adjustment Accounl/Deferred Capital Grants Account).

201314 201213
Notes EQ00's £000's
Assets
Non-current assets )
Property, Plant, Equipment 10{e) 83,407 86,639
Donaled Assets 10(e) 388 434
Assets held for sale 10(e} 728 -
84,513 87,073
Current Assets
Short term investment 19 27,500 5,000
Short term debtors 14 10,772 8,151
Cash and cash equivalents 15 9,467 10,417
47,739 24,568
Total assets 132,258 114,641
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short ferm borrowing 17 {2,080) {2,089)
Trade and Other payables 6 (15,145) {10,258}
Accruals and deferred income 16 (20,724) (6,441}
Provisions 21 {151) (133
(38,100} {18,921}
Long term borrowing 19 (77,500} {78,500)
Other long term Habilities
Net Pension liability 6 (63,893} {64,033}
Long term liabilities (141,383} (142,533}
Total Liabilities (179,493} {161,454}
NET LIABILITIES {47,235) {49,813}
General Fund Balance 8,671 4578
Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve 2 12,523 13,340
Ralil Reserve 20 2,075 2,379
NGT Reserve 20 1,043 2,389
WY Transport Fund Reserve 20 4 085 2,700
Usable Reserves 26,297 25,386
Deferred Capital Grants Account 2 20636 20,914
Capital Adjustment Account 2 {41,404) (43,285)
Financiai instrument adjustment account 36 112
Donated Asset Account 10{c) 668 668
Pension Reserves 6 {83,893) (64,033)
Revaiuation Reserve 8 10,425 10,425
Unusable Reserves {73,532) (75,19%)
Total reserves {47,235} (49,813)
A Taylor Date : 18 September 2014
Chief Financial Officer
WYITA
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WEST YORKSHIRE INTEGRATED TRANSPORT AUTHORITY
GROUP CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014~

Purpose of cashflow

The cashflow is a financial statement that shows how changes in balance sheet accounts and income atfect cash and cash equivalents, and
breaks the analysis down to operating, investing, and financing activities. Essentially, the cash flow statement is concerned with the flow of cash in
and cash out of the business.

2012{13 2013/44

£000's £000's
Gperating Activities

3,121 Surplus on the Provisicn of Service 1,232

4,807 Depreciation 10e 5,118

(464) (Decrease) in creditors 19,161

2,257 (Increase)/Decrease in debtors (1,621)

1,334 Transfer to the Pension Reserve 1,208

17 Provisions 18

(1) Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 18 {1)

- Fixed assets charged to revenue 444

11,171 Net cash generated from operating activities 25,558

Cash flows from investing activities

(2.455) Purchase of properiy, plant and equipment, {3,009)
{5,000) Short term investment 19 (22,500)
1 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 18 4
{7,454) Net cash flows from investing activities {25,508)
Cash flows from financing activities

(1,000) Repayment of loans 17 {1,000)
{1,000} Net cash used from financing activities {1,000
2,717 Net increase in cash and cash equivaients {950}
7,700 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reparting period- 10,417
10,417 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reperting period 8,467

The surplus on the provision of service includes the following items:

201213 2013114
£000's £000's
3,352 Interest paid 3,330

(227) Interest received ) (230)
Hote

Cash and cash equivalents comprises operational cash balances, cash at bank and short-term bank deposits. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand aiso form an integra! part of the Group's cash management arrangements. Inciuded in cash and cash
equivalents is cash at bank held on behalf of third parties where the liability to repay these amounts is recognised under crediiors.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS:~

1

The Group Accounts

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting based code on International Financial Reporting Standards in the United
Kingdom 2013/14{IFRS based code}: The IFRS based code requires all authorities who have a group interest in another
organisation to produce group accounts based on iFRS 3 business combinations and |IAS 27 consclidated and separate financial
statements except where interpretations or adaptions for public sector apply. These accounts therefore include in this secticn the
accounts of both the West Yarkshire Integrated Transport Autherity and the West Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive.
Unlike the Auihority accounts, the group accounis show revenue expenditure on transport net of inter-organisation grants,
expenditure and income, The analysis of these figures is recognised in the segmental reporting note.

Depreciation and Minimum Revenue Provision

The Authority has a statutory obligation to make adequate provision to meet its liabilities in respec! of capital expenditure financed
by external borrewing. The method of calculating the provision is defined by statute. For 2013/14 the amount is £3.831m {2012/13
- £3.991m).

The provision has been charged to service revenue-accounts as a depreciation charge for fixed assets related to that service. The
balance has been transferred from the Capital Adjustiment Account fo the Group General Fund Balance to ensure that the charge
ta the amount met from Government Grant and Local Taxation equates to the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).

in the Executive's accounts depreciation has been charged directly to the Income and Expenditure Account but is largely offset by
the release cf capital grants held in their balance sheet.

201314 2012/13
£000's £000's

Depreciation charged 1o services 5119 4,907
Additional charge to revenue to reflect MRP 4,031 4,191
9,150 9,098
Less capital grants released (in Executive's accounis} {4,583} (4,374}
Less depreciation shown in MIRS (200} (200)
Group net charge to revenue 4,357 4,524
Capital Adjustment Account 2013114 2012/13
£000's £000's
Opening balance (43,285)  (44,694)
income items:
Receipt of grants during the year 48,967 46,152
Capital receipts applied/(unapplied) 817 658

Revaluation of ITA Assels - -
49,784 46,810

Deduct:
Depreciation net of MRP (47,903)  (45,401)
Balance at the end of the Year (41,404) (43.285)

Deferred Capital Grant Account

QOpening balance : 20,914 21,059
Non ITA grants te PTE 7,877 2,855

28,791 23,914
Depreciation and Revenue W/Off (8,155) (3,000)
Balance at the end of the Year 20,636 20,914

Capital Grants unapplied

Opening balance 13,340 13,598
Capital receipts {applied)}unapplied in year ' (817) {658)
Balance cff 12,523 13,340

Segmental Reporting

The analysis of income and expendiiure by service on the face of the comprehensive income 'and expenditure staiement is that
specified by the Service Reporling Code of Practice (SeRCOP). However, decisions about resource aflocation are taken by the
Group on the basis of-budget reports. These reports are prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the
financial statements. In particular capital grants are credited to the revenue account over the life of the asse? o offsel
depreciation charges and the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows {payment of employer's pensicn contribufions})
rather than current/past service cost of benefits accrued in the year, The reporl presented {o the Authority is on a consolidated
basis taking inte account the operations of the Executive.

Presented below is the restatement of Cost of Services and specific and non-specific grant income as reported to the Group's
decision makers.
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Pisposal of Fixed Assets

201314 201213
£000's £000's
(Profit) on disposal of fixed assets by the Executive 4 {1)
201314 201213
£000°s £000's

Financing income and Costs
Interest receivable on Loans, deposits and other debts {230) {227}
Interest payable on Loans 3,330 3,352
Effect of early setilement of Loans : _ ?‘_6 76

Pension Costs

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

The Authority and Executive participate in the West Yorkshire Pension Fund, administered by Bradford Metropolitan
District Council. This is a funded defined benefit scheme, meaning that they and their employees pay contributions into 2
fund, calculated at a level infended to balance the pensions ligbilities with invesiment assets. in 2013/14 contributions
payable for the year tc West Yorkshire Pension Fund based on a formal actuarial valuation for 31 March 2010 were
£2.08m {2012/13 - £2.05m) representing 13% (Executive} and 13% {(Authority} of pensionable pay with additional lump
sum payments in 2013/14 of £0.979m {Executive} and £0.002m {Authority) . Under the Pension Fund in addition to
employer's contributions the Authority and Executive are responsible for the pension payments relating to added years
benefits they have awarded to former employees, together with related ‘annuat increases. They paid £1.3m for such
payments in 2013/14 (£1.3m in 2012/13}. Under the pension fund regulations coniribution rates are set to meet the overalt
liabilities of the Fund. The aciuarial valuation carried out at 31 March 2013 has determined the employer contributions for
the next three years but recognising that the WYPTE and WYITA will be dissolved and its pension assets and liabilities
transfered o the West Yorkshire Combined Authority at 1 April 2014 a rate has been determinad for the new entity of
13.5% plus a lump sum of £0.96m in 2014/15.

Capitat Cost of Discretionary increases in Pension Payments.

The Group is reguired to disclose the sapital cost of discretionary increases in pensicn payments, which related io the
award of added years on the early retirement of employees. Separate disciosure is required for the in year discretionary
awards and the ongoing costs of previous years discretionary payments. The capital costs relating to the awards of
discretionary added years are set out below:-

2013/14 2012/13

£000's £000's

i} Current Employees 2,076 2,050
if) Former Employees 1,336 1,323

Pension disclosures required under {AS 18

The Group's West Yorkshire Pension Fund liabilities have been assessed by AON Hewitt Ltd, an independent firm of
actuaries. Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit methad, an estimate of the pensions
that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels eic. The main assumpticns
used in their calculations have been:

31/03/2014 31/03/2013
Unfunded Funded Unfunded Funded
Duration of habilities 12 14.4 12 13.4
Infiation : RPI 3.2% . 3.3% 3.2% 3.2%
CPI 2.2% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3%
Rate of increase in salaries - 3.8% - 4.2%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment 2.2% 2.3% 2.3% 2.3%
Rate used to discount funded scheme liabilities 4.2% 4.2% 4.1% 4.2%
42
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6.3 Pension disclosures required under tAS 19 {continued)

Mortality assumptions
Post retirement mortality (retivement in normal health) -

31/03/2014

Males : CM! 2012 Long term rate of
improvement of 1.5%

Females : CM! 2012 Long term rate of
improvement of 1.5%

31/03/2013

Males : CM! 20098 Long term rate of
improvement of 1.25%

Females : CMi 2009 Long term rate of
improvement of 1.25%

Life Expectancy
- of a male (female) future pensioner aged 65 in 20yrs time
- of a male (female) current pensioner aged 65

24.7 (27.7) Years
225 (25.4) Years

23.9 (26.2) Years

22.1(24.3) Years

As parl of the 2013 actuarial valuation the mortality experience was analysed across the fund over a 3 year period to 31 March 2013
and assumptions have been amended regarding life expectancy. The mottality allowance for fulure improvements uses the
Continuous Mortality investigation {CMI) Mortality Projections model with the model updated annually to reflect the latest emerging
experience. This means there will continue to be regular changes to the assumptions for future improvements in mortality rates as
new data is taken into account,

Assets in the West Yorkshire Pension Fund are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments, and consist of the
following categories set ouf below. The vaiuation as at 31 March 2013 of the pension scheme proportion as applied to the Authority
and Executive is rolled forward for 31 March 2014 (showing the proportion of assets between the classes of investment) and are as
foliows:-

The assets of the scheme were:

31 March 2014

31 March 2013

102

Asset Asset Asset
Quoted  Unquoted Total £000's Split £000's
% % % ‘ %
Equities 75.3 0.0 75.3 88,172 72,5 86,075
Government Bonds 10.5 0.0 10.5 12,295 119 14,4128
Other Bonds 5.4 0.0 5.4 6,324 5.7 6,767
Property 32 0.0 3.2 3,747 31 3,681
Cash/Liquidity 31 0.0 3.1 3,630 36 4,274
Other 2.5 0.0 2.5 2,927 32 3,789
Total 100.0 0.0 100.0 117,095 100.0 118,724
Reconciliation of unfunded/funded status to Balance Sheet
31/03/2014 31/03/2014 31/03/2013 31/03/2013
£000's £000's £000's £000's
Unfunded Funded Unfunded Funded
Fair Value of assets - 117,005 - 118,724
Present value of unfunded/ funded defined benefit
obligation 13,738 167,249 14,470 168,287
Funded status - {50,154) (48,563)
Impact of minimum funding requirement
/asset ceiling - - - -
Assetf(liability) recognised on the balance
sheet (13,739) (50,154) {14,470} (49,563)
Reconciliation of present value of scheme fiabilities
£000's £000’s £000's £000's
31/03/2014 31/03/2014 31/03/2013 31/03/2013
nfunded Al Benefits Unfunded All Benefits
1 April 14,470 182,757 14,703 176,263
Current service cost - 1,939 - 1,563
interest cost .bEg 7.458 647 7.889
Member Contributions - 599 - 463
Past service cost - 8 - 47
Actuarial gainfloss financial assumptin 217 (2,985} 433 5877
Actuarial gainfloss Demographic 465 324 - -
. Actuarial gain/loss experience (281) 471 (27} 4
Curtaiiments - - - -
Benefits paid (1,256) (9,589) {1,286} (8,341)
31 March 13,739 180,988 14,470 182,757
43



Reconciliation of fair value of scheme asseis

£000's £000's £000's £000's
31/03/2014 31/03/2014 31/03/2013 31/03/2013

Unfunded Ali Benefits Unfunded Al Benefits
1 April - 118,724 - 109,412
Interest income on scheme assets - 4,872 - 4,807
Remeasurement cf (losses)/gains - (848) - 10,015
Contributions paid by empioyer 1,256 3,337 1,286 3,268
Member Coniributions - 539 - 463
Benefits paid {1,256) (9,589} {1,286) {9,341}
31 March - 117,085 - 118,724
Actual return on assets 31/03/2014 31/03/2013
£000's £000's
Interest income on assets 4,872 4,307
Remeasurement gain/(loss} on assets (848) 10,015
Actual return on assets 4,024 14,822

The amounts recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

310312014 31/03/2013
Cost of Service £'000 £'000
Current Service Cost 1,939 1,663
Past Service Cost 8 47
Curtailments or seftlements - -
Financing Investment iIncome and Expenditure
interest on net defined benefit liability 2,596 2,992
Total pension cost recognised . -—_—m— W

Remeasurements in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Return on plan assets {in excess)/oelow that
recognised in net interest 948 (10,015)

Actuarial gainsfiosses due o change in Financial assumption {2 989) 5,877

Actuariai gains/losses due {0 change in

Demograghic assumption ©324 -
Actuarial gains/losses due fo liability experience 471 4)
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive income W w
Total amount recognised 3,197 460

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis showing the impact of changing key actuarial assumptions on the present vaiue of the funded defined
benefit obligation as at 31 March 2014 and the projected service cost for the year ending 31 March 2015 is set out below.
Only the assumptions mentioned are aliered all other assumptions remain the same. There is no sensitivity for unfunded
benefits on materiality grounds.

Funded LGPS benefits

Adjustment o discount rate +0.1%pa -0.1%pa
Present value of fotal obligation £000's 164,679 169,846
% change in present value of total cbligation ~1.5% 1.5%
Projected service cost £000's 1,738 1,845
Approximate % change in projected service cost -2.9% 3.0%
Adjustment to rate of increase in salaries +0.1%pa -0.1%pa
Present vaiue of fotaj obligation £000's 167,649 166,845
% change in present value ¢f total cbligation 0.2% -0.2%
Projected service cost £000's 1,790 1,760
Approximate % change in projected service cost 0.0% 0.0%
Adjustment to pension increase rate +0.1%pa 0.1%pa
Present vaiue of {otai obligation £000's 168,389 165,182
% change in present value of total obligation 1.3% -1.2%
Projected service cost £000's 1,846 1,736
Approximate % change in projected service cost 3.2% -3.0%
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Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption -1 year +1 year

Present value of total obligation £000's 172,266 162,221
% change in present value of total obligation 3.0% -3.0%
Projected service cost £000's 1,846 1,735
Approximate % change in projected service cosi 3% -3.1%

Estimated Income and Expenditure /Surplus or deficit in future periods

This is an estimate of the charges to the estimated surplus or deficit on the income and expenditure
/provision of services in future periods, based on the assumptions as at 31 March 2014 as set ouf above
plus the additionai assumption to reflect that the projected cost is based on benefits being earned under a
Career Average scheme.

34/03/2014 31/03/2013
£'000 £'000
Rate of revaluation of pension accounis 2.3 n/a

Funded LGPS benefits « Expected amounts charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

3103720115

£'000
Frojected service cost 1,780
Past Service cost -
Interest on the net defined benefit liabilily/(asset) 2,026
3,816

Unfunded LGPS benefits - Expected amounts charged fo Surpius or Deficit on the Provision of Services

31/03/2015

£'000
Past Service cost -
Interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 543
549

A revised IAS 192 will come into force for accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2013 If this revised |AS 19 were adopted for
the accounting period ending 31 March 2013 then this will increase the expenses recognised for funded benefits from £1.355M to
£3.955M. There is no effect on the Balance Sheet.

Government Grant income 2013/14 201213
£000's £000's
Revenue - Authority
Special Rail Grant (SRG} - Department for Transport 54,209 57,613
Section 31 LSTF - Department for Transport 472 650
Section 31 BBAF - Depariment for Transport 1,125 454
Community Transport Support Grant - Department for Transpor, 159 B
Bus Service Operator Grant - Department for Transport 513 -
66,478 58,727
- Executive
Section 31 LSTF - Department for Transport 220 289
66,688 58,016
Capital
= Authority
Integrated Transport Block/Maintenance - DfT 44,829 45,503
Section 31 BBAF - Depariment for Transport 509 649
Section 31 City Cycle Ambition Grant - Depariment for Transport 858 -
46,196 46,152
- Executive
Congestion Performance Fund - Department for Transport 392 349
Section 31 LSTF - Department for Transport 48 17
NGT/Supertram Funding (Capital) - 2,389
Cleaner Bus Technclogy Grant - Department for Transport 1,000 B
Section 31 Leeds Station Southern Ent - Department for Transport 540 -
114,974 107,923
45
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The funding for the provision of rail services under the franchising arrangements was paid directly to the Executive
by the Authority. The Authority received the pre-determined sums directly from the Government (DfT) in the first
instance. The amounis payable to the Executive were as foliows:-

2013114 2012M13
£000°s £000's
Payments to Operators 63,335 56,771
Contribution to the Executive
administration costs 874 842
64,209 57,613
8  Revaluation Reserve
2013/14 201213
£000°s £000's
Balance at 1 April 10,425 10,425
Deficit on revaluation - -
Balance at 31 March 10,425 10,425
9 Officers' Remuneration and Members Allowances
2013714 2012113
£000's £000's
{ay Employees Costs Amounted {o:
Wages and Salaries 8,910 8,502
Social Security Costs §33 608
Other Pension Costs 2,076 2,050
11,619 11,160

Members' Allowances -
The total members’ allowances paid in the year was £252,700 (2012/13 - £251,705),

{b} The average number of persons

employed was: Number Number
Manual 44 45
Management and Administration 339 335

383 380

¢y At 31 March the unused heliday entitiement across the Executive totalied:-

31/03M4 31/03M13
£'000s £'000s

143 142

The Executives policy on flexi-leave carried over is that it does not give rise 1o a financial entitlement.

d) l The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 requires the disclosure of the number of senior officers whose remuneration in the year was
£50,000 or more, grouped in fising bands of £5,000. The following table therefore shows all Executive Directors and senior employees
and Authority emplayees in their appropriate band.

Directors
only Officers

Band 2013114 2012/13 Band 2013/14 2012113
£Nit -£5000 1 1 £15,001 - £20,000 - 1
£10,001 - £15,000 1 1 £25,001 - £30,000 - 1
£80,001 - £95,000 1 2 £30,001 - £35000 1
£85,001 - £100,000 1 1 £50,001 - £55,000 2 1
£100,001% - £105,000 1 - £55,001 - £60,000 6 6
£120,001 - £125,000 1 - £65,001 - £70,000 - 1
£145,001 - £150,000 - 1 £70,001 - £75,000 2 1
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Termination benefits were paid by the Executive arising from the termination of employment incurring liabilities of £215,167 in
2013/14 (£39,388 in 2012/13). The exit package payable included voluntary redundancy payments and enhanced pension
benefits payable to one officer within the Passenger Services Directorate reflecting a restructuring and rationaiisation of this

service area.

Officers' Remuneration

Director General
Director of Passenger
Services

Director of Develocpment
Director of Rescurces
Assistant Director

Legal

Assistant Directer
Finance

Assistant Director ICT
Assistant Director
Corporate Development

Assistant Director
Integrated Transporl

Assistant Director
Rapid Transit

Assistant Director
Customer Services

Assistant Director
Transport Services

Director of Pteg
Assistant Director
Pieg

Deputy

Clerk - iTA

Exit Packages

Exit Package cost band
{inc. special payments}

£0-£20,000
£20,001-£40,000

£160,001-£180,000

{continued)

2012/13
2013114

201213
2013/14

201213
201314

201213
2013/14

201213
2013/14

201213
2013/14

201213
2013/14

201213
2013/14

201213
2013/14

201213
2013114

2012113
2013114

201213
201314

201213
2013/14

2012/13
2013/14

2012113
2013114

Number of compulsory

Salary Fees
Allowances

146,484
120,101

98,550
101,799

93,864
95699

90,708
94,193

59,220
58,812

57 498
59,812

19,872
54,738

59,220
56,812

59,220
59,812

68,584
71,765

57,498
58,812

55,822
58,783

73,333
73,333

54,197
32,387

49,845
50,101

Bonuses

Number of other

Expenses
Allowances office

Compensation

for loss of

111 -
699 168,557
12 -

13 -
205 -

272 -

32 -
137 -
200 -

393 -
1,155 -

363 -
i8 -
11 -

1,441 -
1,505 -

1,147 -
147 -

Total number of exit

Pension

Contributions Total

19,043
15,813

12,812
13,234

12,202
12,441

11,792
12,245

7.969
7,776

7,475
7,776

2,583
7,116

7,699
7,776

7,689
7,776

9,048
9,328

7.475
7,776

7,257
7.642

9,533
9,533

7,046
4,210

6,480
6,513

165,638
304,970

111,362
115,045

106,079
108,346

162,500
106,438

67,189
67,588

64,973
67,588

22 455
62,126

66,951
67,588

67,056
67,788

79,023
82,249

65,336
67,588

63,097
66,436

84,307
84,371

62,350
36,744

56,325
56,614

Total cost of exit

redundancies departures packages by cost band  packages in each band

2012113 2013114 2012/13 2013114 2012113 201314 2012113 2013114

£ £

0 0 0 2 0 2 0 25,021

0 0 1 1 1 1 39,388 21,590

0 4] 0 1 0 1 0 168,557

Totat 0 0 1 4 1 4 39,388 215,168
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10 Property, Plant & Equipment

(a)

¢

A revaluation of the Group's On-Street Furniture was carried out by the Infrastructure Manager and approved by the Executive
Board as internal experls. The revaluation was carried out as at 31 March 2008.

All On-Street Furniture was included in the revaluation. The basis of the valuation was depreciated replacement cost as these
assets are deemed fo be speciatised. This resulted in an overali valuation of £16,212 823 which gave a loss on revaluation of
£71,966. All the revalued amounts have been incorperated in the accounts for 2007/08.

The On-street furniture assets under IFRS code are re-classified as infrastructure assets and valued at historical cost deemed to
be the value at 1 April 2007 adjusted for subsequent depreciation or impairment. As the valuation method used at 31 March 2008
was on a depreciated replacement cost basis this acts as a suitable proxy for historical cost.

A revaluation of the Group's land and buildings was carried out by an MRICS qualified valuer of Lambert Smith Hampton, a
firm of external Chartered Surveyors. The revaluation was carried out as at 31 March 2011 on an Existing Use Vaiue {(EUV),
and Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) basis in accordance with IAS 16. This resulted in an overall valuation of £8,870,000
which gave aloss on revaluation of £511,000. A valuation of the Executive’s Donated Asset at Hemsworth was undertaken at
31 March 2012 on a Fair Value basis resulting in a valuation of £81,000. An independent review of the Group's non-
infrastructure assets has been undertaken by an MRICS qualified valuer of Lambert Smith Hampton to provide assurance that
there was no material change in the fair values at 31 March 2014. There were no material changes reported.

Assets Held for Sale

The Executive has identified an asset {o be classified as held for sale in the form of an NGT land property which has been
deemed to be surplus to requirements for the purposes of the NGT scheme. The sale has been agreed with the deveioper of
Leeds Eastgate to acquire the land based on the Compuilsory Purchase order compensation value paid by the Executive of
£726,000. The asset was held in working progress and valued at historical cost, this cartying value has been used to
measure the assets value for classification as an asset held for sale.

201314 201213
£000’s £000's

Balance Outstanding at start of the year
Asseis newly classified held for sale - -
Properly plant and Equipment 726 -
Disposal of property,plant and Equipment in year - -
Balance Outstanding at end of the year 726 -

Donated Asset Account

The CIPFA code introduces the concept of Donated Assets whare assets have been acquired for less than thair fair value. The
code stipulates that the difference between the fair value of the asset and the consideration paid shall be recognised immediately -
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as income, or in the event that the transfer has cenditions, recognised
in the Donated Assat Account until such time as the conditions have been met. The Executive's ieased bus stations {finance
leases on-balance sheet) meet the criteria of Donated Assets with conditions aftached, as failure to fulfil the conditions on an on-
going basis would result in the assets being returned 1o the relevant councils. These asseis were received at little or no cost but
are recognised on the balance sheet at fair value to reflect the true benefit of these assets with a corresponding reserve created

in the form of 2 Donated Asset Account . Afler initial recognition Donated Assels are categorised as Infra-structure Assets and
are vaiued at historical cost.

Donated Asset Account 2013114 2012113
£000's £000's
Balance B/fwd 1 April 668 668

Donated Assets with conditions applied B -

Balance C/fwd 31 March 668 668
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11

Related Party Transactions

The Authority/Executive is required to disclose material transactions with related parties in accordance with |AS 24
"Retated party transactions”. Related parties are bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the
Authority or to be cenfrolied or influenced by the Authority/Executive. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to
assess the extent to which it might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the
ability to limit another party's ability fo bargain freely with the Authority/Executive.

MEMEERS

The Authority requires Members to complete a declaration of Related Party Transactions and this information is used to
prepare this note. All members have at least fwo roles under the Local Government Act 1985 in that they are members of
ane of the five constituent levying Metropolitan District Councils and are appointed onto the Integrated Transport Authority.
Other than this no Member has dectared any such transaction with the Authority,

The Authority and Executive have a number of financial transactions with related parties. The significant revenue
transactions, not separately disclosed elsewhere or covering basic areas of expenditure such as rates and other service
charges are: :

The UK Government exerts significant influence through !egisiation and grant funding as disciosed in Note 7.

- The Authority receives financing through its Levy from the District Councils.

- The Executive provides agency services for Educaticn transport for which they
are paid fees.

- The Authority received Local Transport Block Funding of which an allocation was paid to the District
Councils.

The figures for 2012/13 and 2013/14 are set out below:

Education transport amounts received by the Executive - Authority Levy:- Local Transport Biock Funding;-
2013114 2012/13 201314 2012113 201314 2012113
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Bradford MDC 2.23 2.56 2354 22.59 8.76 857

Calderdale MDC 0.81 0.89 8.98 8.70 4.38 4.85

Kirklees MDC 0.30 2.08 18.34 17.45 7.52 8.75

Leeds City Councit 219 2.27 33.44 34.04 13.31 12.42

Wakefield MDC 210 2.09 15.25 14.82 5.85 5.1t

7.63 9.89 98.55 97.60 39.82 38.70

Officers

Mr K Preston, Clerk to the Authority, was also Director-General of the Passenger Transport Executive (PTE). He
took voluntary redundancy on 24th January 2014. His services to the Authority are not recharged to the
Authority by the Executive. Mrs A Taylor is the Authority's 151 Officer and is employed by the Executive as
Director Resources and also their s151 Officer.

Yorcard Ltd is a Joint Venture trading company operated in conjunction with SYPTE and is fully disclosed in
note 22. Mr John Henkel is a Director of WYPTE and of Yorcard Ltd.

West Yorkshire Ticketing (TICCO) Lid administers and develops a range of multi-operator . mulii-modai
tickets.

Mr John Henkel is a Director of WYPTE and of TICCO Ltd. During the year ended 31 March 2014 recharges
totailing £112,000 were invoiced by TICCQO Lid fo the Executive. N

iTSO Services Lid is a trading company established to promote the development of interoperable smart card
applications to public transport. Mr John Henkel is a Director of WYPTE and of ITSO Services Ltd. During the
year ended 31 March 2014 fees totalling £0 were invoiced by {TSC Services Ltd to the Executive.
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Payments to Operators

The integrated Transporl Authority determines the annual revenue grant {fo be paid to the Executive out of which all
payments to operators are funded. These payments to operators fall into the three main categories of concessionary fares,
subsidised hus services and franchised locai rail services.

Payments for concessionary fares are made in accordance with the Authority’s concessionary fares scheme which is based
on the reimbursement guidance issued by the Depariment for Transport. The Authority has entered into three year
agreements with the major hus operators within the framework of this guidance which remove an element of financial risk for
all parties.

Subsidised services are secured by the Executive, within the overall framework of the Authority’s policies, where they are
considered fo he socially necessary and no commercial service or adequate commercial service exists. All licensed
operators are eligible to submit tenders for services required.

Payments are made to one franchised rail operator for the provision of local rail services. A note of the effect of rail
franchising and the funding arrangements is attached as part of these accounts on page 45 {Note 7).

In accordance with the overall policies of the Integrated Transport Authority, the Executive administers a prepaid ticket
scheme. The Executive receives revenues from prepaid ticket sales which are then pooled and distributed to operators
based on passenger journey and usage data coliected by the Executive. This prepaid ticket income is included in the
Executive’'s revenue account together with an equivalent amount shown as payment to operators.

All these payments to ocperators are summarised in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement segmental
reporting on page 41.

Exceptional item

There were no exceptional ifems in 2013/14 or 2012/13.

Taxation

The Executive paid Corporation Tax @ 20% (20% 2012/2013} which is charged on sundry interest received in the year.
The fiability for the year ended 31 March 2014 was £158.47 (£118.18 2012/13).

Short Term Debtors 2013/14 201213

£000's £000's
Central government hodies 1,683 416
Other Local Authorities 4,191 2,747
Bodies external to general government 4,898 5,988

10,772 8,151

Trade and other receivables are non-interes{ bearing financial instruments. There is no material
difference between the carrying vaiue and the fair value of trade and other receivables.

Cash & Cash Equivalents 2013114 2012113
E000's E000's

Bank Current Accounts 9,467 10,417

9,467 10,417

Cash balances include £652k {(2012/13: £119k) held cn behalf of third parties. The liability fo
repay these amounts is included under creditors.

Cash at bank and short term deposits earn interest at floating rates based on bank deposit rates. There is

no materiat difference between the carrying value and fair value of cash and cash equivalents.
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Trade and Other Payabiles
2013114 201213

£000's £000's
Central government bodies 203 4
Other Local Autherities 4,316 2,720
Bodies external to general government 10,626 7,534

15,145 10,258

2013114 201213

DEFERRED INCOME £000's £000's
Central government 20,552 6,056
Cther local authorities 29 243
Bodies external to general government 143 142

20,724 6,441
Notes '

(a) Central government deferred income relates to Grants received in advance where conditions have not been
met at the year end.

(b} Other Local Authorities deferred income relates to capital contributions ta small infrastructure projects that
have not yet been complete and conditicns remain outstanding.

Trade and other payab!'es are non-interest bearing financial instruments. There is no material difference between the
carrying value and the fair value of trade and other payables.

Loans Outistanding
201314 201213

£000's £000's
Lender:-
Public Works Loans Board 54,261 55,270
Other Market Loans 25,319 25,319

Short Term Loans

79,580 80,589

Maturity:-

Loans repayabie within 12 months 2,080 2,089
1-2 years 1,000 1,000
2-5 years 1,500 2,500
5-10 years : . - -
in more than 10 years 75,000 75,000

79,580 80,588

Capital Expenditure and Financing

201314 2012113

£000's £000's
Capital investment
Cperational assets acquired in year 57,661 49,666
Sources of finance
Borrowing {credit approvails) - -
Capital receipts 1 -
Government grants and other contributions 57,660 49,720
Revenue contributions - {54)
57,661 49,666

Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by loans, creditors and frade receivables and short-term debtors are carried in
the Balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value is assessed as the amount at which the insirument could be exchanged
in a current fransaction betwean willing parties.

Trade and other receivables are nan-interest bearing financiaf instruments The short term nature of these instruments means
there is no material difference between the carrying value and fair value .
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Financial Instruments Cont'd

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
£000's £000's £000's £000's
Carrying Fair value Carrying  Fair value
Amount Amount
Financial Assets
Current trade debtors 10,772 10,772 9,151 9,151
Cash and cash equivalents 9,467 9,467 10,417 10,417
Short term investment 27,500 27,569 5,000 5,124
Financial Liahilities
Short-term creditors 35,869 35,869 16,699 16,699
Ficating rate borrowing - due within Tyr - E - -
Fixed Rate berrowing - due within 1 yr 1,009 1,014 1,009 1,013
Fioating rate borrewing - due after 1yr 5,019 4,414 5,062 5,199
Fixed Rate borrowing - due after 1 yr 73,552 73,386 74,518 77,648
79,580 78,814 80,589 83,860

The Authority has considered the balance sheet carrying values ie amortised costs of financial instruments of the Group. it is required to
disclose the fair value and carrying value for those financial instruments whose carrying value is not a reasonable approximation for fair
value. Inthe Group's bocks it is only the Authority's loan portfolio and short term investment which fal! into this category.

Hedging Instruments

The Group helds no financial instruments that could be classified as hedging instruments.

Loans and Borrowings

Fair value is determined by calculating the Net Present Value of future cash flows, thus estimating the value of fufure payments in
today's terms. This is a widely accepted and commonly used valuation fechnique. The discount rate used should be equai to the
current rate for a similar loan from a comparable lender. This will be the market rate applicable on the date of valuation for a loan with
the same outstanding period to maturity.

However, it may be unlikely that the future cash flows of a loan will fall in equal time periods from the date of valuation, so adjustments
are made to each discount factor in order to account for the timing inequality.

The purpese of the fair value disclosure is primarily to provide a comparison with the carrying value, which includes accrued interest as
at the balance sheet date, therefore we have inciuded accrued interest in the fair value caiculation,

The discount rates used for the evaluation were obtained by WYITA from Capita. Capita is a leading and independent provider of
capital financing, treasury advisory and strategic advisory consulting services to the public sector.

Assumptions used, which do not have a material affect on the fair value evaluation are: interest is calculated using a 365 day basis;
interest is paid on the maturity date; no adjustment is made to the interest value and date where a relevant date occurs on a non
working day.
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Financial Instruments Cont'd

Effective 201314 2012113
Current interest rate  Maturity £000's £000's
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Jun 2013 - 500
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Dec 2013 - 500
PWLEB - EIP 2.81% Jun 2014 500 -
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Cec 2014 500 -
1,000 1,000

Non- Current
Pubiic Works Loan Board 3.70% Jan 2056 5,000 5,000
Pubiic Works Loan Board 4.40% Jan 2052 5,000 5,000
Public Works Loan Board 4.40% Jan 2054 8,000 8,000
Pubiic Works Loan Board 4.40% Jun 2053 8,000 8,000
Public Works Loan Board 4,.55% Jun 2052 4,000 4,000
Pubiic Works Loan Board 4.55% Apr 2055 6,000 6,000
Public Works Loan Board 4.55% Apr 2056 6,000 6,000
Public Works Loan Board 4.55% Apr 2057 8,000 8,000
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Jun 2014 - 500
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Dec 2014 - 500
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Jun 2015 500 500
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Dec 2015 500 500
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Jun 2016 500 500
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Dec 2016 500 500
PWLB - EIP 2.81% Jun 2017 500 500
Barclays - LOBO's 3.97% May 2065 5,000 5,000
Barcfays - LOBO's 3.80% Aug 2065 5,000 5,000
Barciays - LOBQO's 3.99% Oct 2066 5,000 5,000
Barclays - LOBO's 4.30% Dec 2076 5,000 5,000
Barciays - LOBO's 4.32% May 2077 5,000 5,000
77,500 78,500
Total 78,500 79,500

Management of risks arising from financial instruments

There are a number of risks associated with financial instruments to which the Group is necessarily exposed. However the
Authority monitors and seeks {o manage these risks in order to minimise the pofential for losses to occur.

Credit risk is the risk that amounts due to the Group may not be received. Almost all of the Authority’s loans and investments are
made for treasury management purposes, to generate income from available balances. The parameters within which these
investments are made are set oui within the approved Treasury Management Policy. The effect of this policy is to restrict as far
as is practicable the Authority’s exposure to risk from the failure of a financial institution. 1t ensures that deposits are placed only
with limited numbers of financial institutions whose credit rating is independently assessed as being sufficiently secure. The
term and maximum deposit is also restricted to reduce risk exposure.

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group may not have sufficient cash available o meet its day to day obligations 10 meet
payments. The Authority has access fo borrowings from the Public Works Loans Board and commercial lenders o meet long
term spending and shorter term cashflow requirements and these arrangements provide the apprepriate level of finance fo
suppert the Autharity's and Executive's current and future requirements . Also measures are in place to aclively manage the loan
portfolio fo ensure refinancing, if required, can be done in a way to minimise the risk of exposure to adverse rales.

Interest rate risk is the risk that fuiure cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The majority of the Group's long term lending is at fixed interest rates but it also borrows some of its money in the form of
lender option borroewer option loans (LOBOs). This mix of lending assists the Group in taking advaniage of changes fo interest
rates and it constantly reviews the potential for refinancing debt at more favourable rates.

The Group is also affected by fluctuations in shorter term interest rates as this impacts on the interest that can be eamed in the
year on deposits. This is carefully monitored and opportunities to secure advaniageous interest rates are considered.

The Group is required io disclose the impact that a hypothetical change in market interest rates during the year would have had on
its recognised gains and losses. It should be noted that had interest rates been different then in practice different decisions would
have been taken in rejation to rescheduling of debt and new borrowing and investment undertaken. I is not possibie to quantify
the likely impact of such different decisions. The Group's interest payable and receivable would have varied by a net £274k if
interest rates varied by 1% in the year.

The Group is net exposed to any material currency risk.
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Net Assets employed 2013/14 2012/13
£000's £000's

Total Reserves and Balances {47,235) (49,813)

The Total Reserves baiance for the Group incudes a Rail Reserve under Usahle Reserves which recognises the disposal of
Rail Rolling stock and Yorkshire 6 funding surpluses with the reserve totalling £2.075m at 31 March 2014. The Authority ear-
marked the rail rolling stock disposal proceeds for raif infrastructure investment and funds were transferred to the Authority to
be heid in the Rail Reserve pending investment in identified rai! projects. As at 31 March 2014 the Rail Reserve has provided
£805k of funding for the Leeds Station Southern Entrance scheme.

The Total Reserves baiance for the Group includes an NGT Reserve of £1.043m under Usable Reserves created as at 31
March 2014 to ear-mark capital funding that is designated solely for the purpose of delivering the Leeds NGT scheme which
received DIT programme entry in July 2012,

In addition the Reserves include the West Yorkshire Transporl Fund Reserve to reflect additional levy coniributions from the
Districts in 2012/13 and 2013/14 to develop strategic transport schemes in West Yorkshire, The reserve has a balance of
£4.085m at 31 March 2014.

Provisions

Provisions are estabiished to meet fiabilities or losses which are likely or cerlain to be incurred, but the amounts or timings are
uncertain. Provisions during the year are analysed as foliows:-

Other Restructure Totai
At 31 March 2013 133 - 133
Arising during year 18 - 18
Utilised in year - - ~
At 31 March 2014 151 0 151

The Executive as at 31 March 2014 has provided for liabilities relating o the now inscivent company Mutual Municipal Insurance
(MM} Ltc representing the potential clawback of claims made by the Executive in previous years. There were no further
provisions for organisational restructure at 31 March 2014 as specified in IAS37. There were no environmental provisions at 31
March 2014,

Joint Venture

At 31 March 2014 the Executive had the following Joint Venture ;

Yorcard Ltd

The joint venture s a frading company which was incorporated in England on the 2 March 2007, it is limited by guarantee with
two subscribers, West Yorkshire PTE and South Yorkshire PTE with contrel shared equally under a contractuat arrangement.

Yorcard Lid performs transaction processing services for smartcard ticketing in West and South Yorkshire.
After considering the maieriality of the Joint Venture management have agreed not to cansclidate Yorcard Ltd into the Group's

accounts . The perfermance and financial position of the Group's share of Yorcard Lid is disclosed befow in accordance with
1AS31 'Interests in Joint Ventures' -

201314 2012113
£000's £000's
Turnover 686 644
Profit before Tax 19 -
_ Taxation - -
Profit after Tax - -
Fixed Assels 13 55
Current Assefs 254 181
Liabilities due within 1yr {247) (173}
Liabilities due afler 1yr or more (13) (55}
7 g8
Net Assets
Auditors Remuneration 201314 2012113
£000's £000’s
Audit Services B0 61
Other Services 1 3
61 64
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24 Financial Commitments 2013/14 204213

£000's £000's

(a) _Capital Commitments
Contracted For but not Provided in the Accounts 82,030 13,533
Authorised but not Contracted For 998 716
: 83,028 14,249

Capital Commitments Autherised but not confracted for have increased in 2013/14 reflecting the approval of large

scaie capital schemes in the year such as NGT Development of £25.3m , Rail Growth Package of £15.8m and the
Cycle City Ambition project of £25.8m.

(b) _Revenue Commitments - Operating Leases

At 31 March 2014 the Executive had outstanding commitments to meet future minimum lease payments under ncn-
cancellable operating leases, falling due as foilows:

Rail Rolting Stock 2013/14 2012113

. £000's £000’s
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised in

the year : 3,003 1,962

Within 1 year - 1924
2 to 5years -
Beyond 5 years e —
- 1,924
The lease rentais beyond five years in respect of rail units are affected by variable interest rates. The above commiiments are

the basic annual renfals due each year within the terms of the lease agreemenis. The Executive however recovers all the lease
rental costs from rail operators under the rail franchising agreements.

The Executive has a number of bus contracts that incorporate a lease under IFRIC4 . The Executive has a number of confracts
with operators that convey the right {o use specific assets in return for a series of payments {o deliver services under the
Executive's tendered service obligations. The minimum lease payments are substantially for service provision with a smali
proportion for the rentat of the assets while the life of the contracts are substantially shorter than the asset's economic useful life
and are therefore deemed to be operating leases.

Bus Operator Payments - IFRIC 4 201314 2012/13
£000's £000's
Minimum {ease payments under operating ieases recognised
in the year : 2,384 2,529
Within 1 year 1,838 2,013
2to 5 years 2,329 1,585

Beyond 5 years -
: 4,167 3,508

The Executive has a number of coniracts for the operation of Mybus school services that are operated as service concession
arangements under IFRIC12, The Executive awards the contract to operators fo provide a service for the public regulating the
leve! of service, price and infra-structure provided. The school buses that form the infra-structure io deliver the service are
initially recognised on the balance sheet at fair value, The service element of the arrangement is expensed through the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement and the minimum lease payments are scheduled below :-

201314 2012113

Bus Operator Payments - IFRIC 12 £000's £000's
Minimum lease payments under iFRIC 12 recognised in the year : 5,135 4,980
Within 1 year 5,200 © 5,022
Within 2-5 years 19,539 20,035
Beyond 5 years 2,519 3,802
27,258 28,049
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Contingent Liabilities

The Executive had a contingent tiability at 31 March 2013 arising from possibie claims relating to Supertram acquisitions.
The liabitity continues at 31 March 2014 but it is not practical to disclose an estimate of the financial effect, amount and

fiming due to the uncertainty.

Going Concern

The accounts of the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis. While the West Yorkshire Combined Authority
order 2014 dissolves the Authority and Executive at 1st April 2014 it provides that all the assets, liabilities and functions
of the Executive continue under the West Yorkshire Combined Authority . This is deemed to be a transfer of services

under combinations of public sector bodies and therefore the presumption of geing concern continues in accordance with

the code.

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

The Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue by the Chief Financial Officer on 18 September 2014. There have
been no adjustments to the financial statements for events after the balance sheet date.
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Appendix 3

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 2014/15
AND REVIEW 2013/14

The following sets out the results of the West Yorkshire Integrated Transport
Authority's borrowing and lending transactions in 2013/14 in accordance with
the CIPFA Code of Practice "Treasury Management in Local Authorities"
adopted by the Authority.

BORROWING AND INVESTMENT

£m £m
Total Loans outstanding at 1 April 2013 78.5
Less Loan Repayments -1.0
New Loans acquired PWLB EIP 0.0
LOBOs 0.0 0.0
Change in level of temporary loans 0.0
Loans outstanding at 31 March 2014 77.5
2.1 The schedule of the loans outstanding at 31 March 2014 is set out in the
notes to the accounts and is shown in the annex at the end of this
appendix.
2.2 The WYITA’s cash balances have been increasing in recent years due

2.3

primarily to large grant payments for capital schemes being received in
advance. These are therefore of a cashflow benefit but cannot be used
to repay borrowing as they are not long term positions. Placing sums on
deposit across a number of institutions both reduces exposure risk by
ensuring there is not an over reliance on one bank and allows a higher
return than leaving the money on overnight deposit. The WYITA’s
regulations on placing money on deposit were therefore reviewed during
the year and some changes approved regarding the duration of deposits.
The quality of the counterparties with whom such deposits can be made
has not been changed and remains restricted to those of a high calibre.
This follows similar arrangements to those in place at Leeds City Council
whose Treasury team assist in managing the WYITA funds.

At the year end WYITA had placed four sums totalling £27.5m on
deposit with different counterparties, each for a year’s term but
staggered to enable a review of cashflow to be made each quarter and
each re-investment therefore reconsidered before being placed again.
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This approach has worked well to date and has increased the interest
income for the organisation.

3. COMMENT

3.1

3.2

3.2

3.3

3.4

2013/14 has seen a continuation of the overall situation from previous
years, with interest rates remaining low. Bank base rate has continued
at its record low of 0.5% and this has restricted opportunities to refinance
loans and to place money on the market at competitive rates.

Regular advice was received about the financial market which was
closely monitored on behalf of the WYITA by Leeds City Council.
Application of the stringent treasury management policy assisted in
ensuring that the WYITA’s funds were held securely. The agreed policy
is to seek to minimise the rate at which the WYITA borrows and
refinance existing debt when it is advantageous to do so. There have
been no such opportunities to do so in the last year and the biggest
challenge has been to seek to make best use of increasing cash
reserves. As set outin 2.3 above an opportunity to do this within the
current investment criteria which are aimed at protecting balances and
not maximising income has been achieved.

The money market is being constantly monitored to ensure that the
WYITA’s bank account is maintained with a minimum cash balance
(nearly always below £1,000) with temporary borrowing and investments
being used as appropriate. A special business reserve account has
been used previously to ensure interest from overnight funds is
maximised but in the current climate the available rate is neglible. Funds
are being left in the current account where they attract an interest rate
close to base rate. Longer term investments (subject to a maximum
term and exposure) are made as required to secure better returns from
surplus funds.

As can be seen from Appendix 2 the loan portfolio has only reduced
during the year by £1m due to the instalment repayment of the EIP loan.
This follows a reduction in the previous year also, due to all WYITA
funding having been received as direct grant in recent years. Previously
capital expenditure had been financed through borrowing. The WYITA
therefore has no need to make further long term borrowing and is
instead in a position where borrowings will need to reduce to meet the
requirements of the prudential code.

This situation is now likely to change as the WYCA considers the
implication of the funding received through the local growth deal for the
West Yorkshire plus Transport Fund. It is highly likely that as an integral
part of such a Fund borrowing will be required to assist in maximising the
funding available and also to assist with cashflow of the infrastructure
investment. The implications of this on the Treasury Management Policy
will be considered and progress will be reported back to this Committee.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

It has previously been reported to this Committee that the instability in
the banking sector had led to increased difficulties in managing the
Authority’s exposure risk. Previously the Authority was able to choose to
invest surplus funds in a wide range of British and overseas banks with
very high credit ratings and which delivered a useful interest income
stream. Since the start of 2009/10 the number of institutions meeting the
necessary credit ratings had fallen significantly and within the UK the
takeover of high street banks by other high street banks further reduced
the scope available.

As well as it being difficult to place funds on the market the interest rates
available have been extremely poor, reflecting the very low bank base
rate. The policy that continued to be followed during the year was
therefore to seek to repay loans if an appropriate opportunity was
identified and fund any short term funding shortfall with a short term loan.
This was not possible during the year, largely due to the low interest
rates attached to the current loans and also due to the prevailing PWLB
rates.

The average borrowing rate for the Authority continues to be at below
4.5%, well ahead of many local authorities.

As has been stated all rates continue to be constantly monitored to see if
any further refinancing can be undertaken, either to take advantage of
opportunities to reduce the Authority’s exposure risk or to reprofile the
debt to assist in making repayments in the coming years.

3.9 The prudential limits set in February are reviewed below.

4 TREASURY MANAGEMENT

4.1

4.2

All placement of funds during 2013/14 was undertaken by Leeds City
Council in accordance with rules approved by the WYITA adopting the
advice from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA). This ensured all investment decisions not merely sought the
highest return but sought to ensure the safety of those funds and to limit
the WYITA'’s exposure to any one organisation.

As stated above the WYITA's investments and cash position are
monitored on a daily basis to ensure any available balances are
promptly invested.

5 PRUDENTIAL BORROWING CODE

5.1

The 2003 Local Government Act requires local authorities to have regard
to the prudential code. Under this code Members approve a treasury
management policy and review the prudential indicators for the year.
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5.2 Members at the WYITA budget meeting in February 2014 took the
appropriate decisions for 2014/15. The WYCA re-endorsed these at its
first meeting on 1 April. Any changes to the capital programme or
changes as a result of the WY+TF will be considered to ensure there is
no resultant requirement to amend the prudential indicators. Members
can, having regard to changing circumstances, approve amendments
during the year. This may become necessary as the creation of the
West Yorkshire Transport Fund progresses.

5.3

It is therefore recommended that the following decisions, as taken in
February 2014, are endorsed:

5.4.1

That the treasury management policy shall be:

54.1.1

54.1.2

54.1.3

5414

54.1.5

That the WYCA adopts the CIPFA code of practice for
Treasury Management in the Public Sector.

To operate the financing on a short term basis to
minimise both investments and income to avoid taking
out expensive loans and re-lending them at a lower
rate of interest.

That there shall be no long term investments for a
term of greater than one year;

To utilise the expertise of the treasury management
team in Leeds City Council for future years.

To use the following rules for short term investments:-

5.4.1.5.1 the investments shall be determined by the
Chief Financial Officer.

5.4.1.5.2 the Chief Financial Officer shall determine
the amounts and periods.

5.4.1.5.3 the procedural document as approved for
their Treasury Management Division by
Leeds City Council shall be adopted in
relation to the authority’s short-term
investments encompassing the council’s list
of approved financial organisations and the
maximum lending limits per organisation, as
specified in that document from time to
time.

5.4.1.5.4 no investment will be for a period exceeding
one year, other than as set out in 5.4.1.3
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5.4.2

54.1.6

5.4.1.5.5 with the exception of an emergency
overnight facility, there shall be no cross
investments with Leeds City Council.

To restrict all additional borrowing to meet capital
expenditure to the level of specific approvals issued
by the government.

That as there have been insufficient changes to alter the
predictions the prudential limits for the current year be reiterated
as set out below:-

5.4.2.1

54.22

54.2.3

54.24

54.25

operational boundary for 2014/15 — £91.95m
authorised limit for 2014/15 - £101.95m
maturity loan structure as shown

a variable rate loan limit of 40%

a fixed loan limit of 100%
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West Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority

Capital Funding 2012/13

Gross Expenditure

Financed from:
Loan from PWLB/LOBO
Less EIB/PWLB Repayments
Internal Borrowing

Provision
Authority

for Credit Liabilities
grant to Executive

Grants receivable

Other Ex

ternal Grants

Use of internal resources

Utilised for:
External

Borrowing

Internal Borrowing
Use of Credit Liabilities Fund

Type of Loan

AUTHORITY LOANS STATEMENT 2013/14

Maturity Date

Existing Loans

Maturity
Maturity
Maturity
Maturity
Maturity

Maturity
Maturity
Maturity
Maturity
Maturity
Maturity
Maturity
Maturity

Maturity

Temporary

(LOBO) 18.04.76
(LOBO)  27.10.66
(LOBO) 31.05.65
(LOBO) 24.08.65
(LOBO)  04.05.77
(PWLB) 15.01.52
(PWLB) 15.07.54
(PWLB) 02.06.53
(PWLB) 15.01.56
(PWLB) 18.04.57
(PWLB) 27.04.55
(PWLB) 25.04.56
(PWLB) 10.06.52
(EIP) 17.6.2017

loans owver the year end

LOANS OUTSTANDING 31st MARCH 2014

Authority Executive Total
£ £ £
57,660,860 57,660,860
-1,000,000 -1,000,000
i -47,066 i -47,066
3,831,000 " 3,831,000
-49,784,262" 49,784,262 -
44,829,000 " 44,829,000
" 1,366,328" 6,530,941" 7,897,269
805,000 1,345,657 " 2,150,657
i 0~ 57,660,860 57,660,860
-1,000,000
-47,066
" 3,831,000 2,783,934
Interest Amount
Rate
% £M £M
4.300 5.000
3.990 5.000
3.970 5.000
3.800 5.000
4.320 5.000" 25.000
4.400 5.000
4.400 8.000
4.400 8.000
3.700 5.000
4.550 8.000
4.550 6.000
4.550 6.000
4.550 4.000
f 50.000
2.810 2.500
2.500
0.000
I 77.500
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West Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority

Actual Capital Expenditure 2013/14

Bus Related Schemes

Castleford Interchange

Miscellaneous smaller schemes/adjustments
Transport hubs

Reversing aides/health and safety works
Clean bus technology

Traffic Light Priority

Bus shelter replacements/improvements

Rail Related Schemes

Advance works on stations

Rail devolution

Wakefield Kirkgate

Customer information screens at rail stations
Rail studies

Rail station carparks

Other Schemes

NGT

Leeds Station Southern Entrance
Cycle City Ambition Grant

Quality contracts

ICT upgrades and enhancements
West Yorkshire Transport Fund
Yorcard

Electric vehicle charging points
Telematics

CARE North

Local Sustainable Transport Fund
Smart transactions and information
LTP3 Development

LTP3 partner payments

Amount
£

489,217
77,716
68,870

722,773

1,163,480

184,958

270,238

743,646
357,777
160,610
120,000
183,911
527,411

5,966,141
1,894,588
857,647
146,733
96,571
2,034,940
279,554
5,000
-20,787
3,196
732,161
693,312
86,197

39,815,000

Appendix 4

2,977,252

2,093,355

52,590,253
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